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2716 BROAD STREET, SW • AUSTELL, GEORGIA 30106-3206 • (770) 944-4300 • FAX (770) 944-2282

June 22,2017

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
of the City of Austell, Georgia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Austell, Georgia ("City"), for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016 is submitted herewith. The accuracy of the presented data; as well as, the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, is the sole responsibility of
the management of the Finance Department.

We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner
designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City. These are
measured by the financial activity of its various funds. We also believe that all disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City's financial activity has been
included.

The financial report for the City of Austell includes all the funds of the primary government, the City
of Austell, as well as its component unit, the Austell Natural Gas System. Since this component unit
is a legally separate entity for which the primary government is financially accountable, the Gas
System's financial statements are reported in a separate column. This emphasizes that the Austell
Natural Gas System is legally a separate entity from the City and differentiates its financial position,
results of operations and cash flow from those of the City.

Government Structure

The City of Austell is governed by a Mayor and six (6) Council Members who are elected to four (4)
year terms in office. Under a Mayor type of government, there are six (6) departments that oversee
the management of the City: General Administration, Finance Department, Community Affairs,
Parks and Recreation, Streets and Maintenance, Fire and Police Department. Each department has a
director who is responsible to the Mayor and Council for the day-to-day management of his/her
respective departments.



The Council operates within a committee framework. The Mayor appoints each of the Council
Members to chair one committee and serve as a member of the other committees. These committees
serve in an oversight capacity for each of the departments and work closely with individual directors.
Although authorization for expenditures of all funds is the ultimate responsibility of the entire
Council, requests and recommendations for projects and funding are first discussed by the
Committee for approval prior to being presented to the Council for official action.

Economic Condition and Overlook

The City is recovering from a substantial economic decline over the previous years. Increases in
franchise fees, cost control measures and new downtown developments have given the City a
positive overall outlook for the future.

Major Initiatives

The City is continuously upgrading and improving its road and water/sewer systems to meet the
needs of its current population. Continuing projects include sidewalks and street improvements
funded by SPLOSTmoney through Cobb County. With the passage of the 2016 SPLOST, the City
has been able to complete park renovations and purchase newpublic safety equipment. Thesefunds
will be used for transportation, parks and public safetyprojects. These improvements will greatly
enhance the City's ability to meet the needs of its citizens well into the twenty-first century. The
City is striving to provide an infrastructure and public safety technology that will pave the way for
the next generation. Conservation efforts are underway to ensure that the youth in the community
will be able to enjoy local parks with their children and grandchildren. Austell is on the right track
due to its leaders, high moral standards and willingness to get involved.

Sanitation

The City has prepared a Capital Improvements Program, which summarizes the City's long-term
capital needs. These are capital requests that will enable the City to continue its commitments to
improving both the quality and quantity of services offered to its citizens. The plan addresses
proposed facility improvements,computerenhancements,road improvements,sidewalkconnectivity
improvements, parks improvements and operating equipment needs.

As of October 1, 2014, the City provides residential sanitation service to it's citizens for which
customers are billed through the water and sewer bills. The City has contracted with Republic
Services to collect garbage at a rate of$9.15 per month. This contract is for three years. In addition
to this, the City sponsors a city-wideclean-up twice a year for themonths ofApril andOctober. The
City provides recycling services, also contracted through Republic Services.
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Financial Highlights

The estimated total value of the 2015 City's tax digest was virtually unchanged from the 2014 digest.
The 2016 digest is expected to increase due to changes in the economic conditions. Also, property
tax millage rates have remained at 3.06 mils. Franchise revenues have decreased dramatically
causing a substantial loss in the General Fund. These revenues are anticipated to increase beginning
August, 2016 due to a franchise fee rate increase.

Financial Information Accounting System and Budgetary Control

Management ofthe City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The internal control structure is
designed to provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgment by management.

In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to
ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by
the City Council. Activities of the General Fund, Emergency Telephone System Fund, Confiscated
Assets Fund, Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, Multiple Grants Fund, Austell Area Community Improvement
Council, and proprietary funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of
budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriate
amount) is established by department within an individual fund.

Cash Management and Investment

The intention of the cash management system is to limit the amount of funds placed in accounts
where low or no interest is paid. Idle cash is invested in various instruments with various maturity
dates, depending on the anticipated cash requirements during the period.

The overall strategy of holding deposits and making investments is to limit exposure ofthe City to a
minimum amount of credit risk and market risk. For the 2016 Fiscal year the City's deposits were
fully collateralized.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to a variety of accidental losses and has established a risk management strategy
that attempts to minimize losses.

Risk control techniques have been established to reasonably ensure that the City's employees are
aware of their responsibilities regarding loss exposures related to their duties. In a similar manner,
risk control techniques have been established to reduce possible losses to property owned by or under
control of the City. Furthermore, supervisory personnel are held responsible for monitoring risk
control techniques on an operational basis.
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The primary technique used for risk financing is the purchase of insurance policies from commercial
insurers that include a large deductible amount. The use of a $2,500 deductible reduces the cost of
insurance, but should losses occur, the portion of the uninsured loss is not expected to be significant
with respect to the financial position of the City.

Long-Term Planning

The City is continually looking toward the future to accommodate maintenance and expansion of its
infrastructure, as well as upgrading technical services to provide more effective services. For
example, over the next 10 years, the City hopes to eliminate all pump stations connected to its sewer
system, which will be funded by operating fees and fund balance. Secondly, the City is continuing to
use SPLOST funds to improve its parks and public works infrastructure as well as enhance public
safety technology with new vehicles and equipment. Finally, during fiscal year 2016 the City has
renovated and enhanced parks and public safety equipment.

Other Information

Management Discussion and Analysis

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A
and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following
the report of the independent auditor.

Independent Audit

State statute requires an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The firm of James
L.Whitaker, P.e. was selected by the City'S audit committee. Accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards set forth in the General Accounting
Office's GovernmentAuditing Standardswere used by the auditors in conducting the engagement.
The auditor's report on the basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this
report. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic
evaluation for weaknesses by management and internal staff.

Acknowledgments

TheGovernment FinanceOfficersAssociation (GFOA) awardeda "CertificateofAchievement"for
Excellence in Financial Report" to the City of Austell for its comprehensive financial report for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This represents the eighteenth year the City has received this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reportingfrom
the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficientlyorganizedcomprehensiveannualfmancialreport,whosecontentsconformto
program standards. Such reports must satisfy Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and
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applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. I believe our current
comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements, and I am submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the City and all its departments. We would like to express our
appreciation to all members of the City who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report.
Due credit should also be given to the Mayor and Governing Council for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the operations ofthe government in a responsible and progressive maimer.

l;;:Ub
Denise Soesbee
Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the HonorableMayor and Members of City Council
City of Austell, Georgia

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented componentunit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Austell, Georgia (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free frommaterial misstatement,whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Austell Natural Gas System, which statements reflect 100% of the assets and deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, net position, revenues and expenses of the
aggregate discretely presented component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofaras it relates to the amounts included for the Austell Natural Gas System,
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
GovernmentAuditing Standards, issuedby the ComptrollerGeneral of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
materialmisstatement. .

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements,whether due to fraud or error, Inmaking those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenessof accountingpolicies used and the reasonablenessof significant
accounting estimatesmade by management,as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidencewe have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Austell, Georgia, as of June 30, 2016
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the General Fundand the Multiple Grants Fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussionand Analysis on pages 4 through 12and the Schedule of Changes in TheNet Pension Liability and Related
Ratios on pages 51 through 53 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context.We have applied certain limitedprocedures to the required supplementary
informationin accordancewith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Austell, Georgia's basic financial statements. The introductorysection, combining nonmajor and
individual fund financial statements and budget schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the individual fund financial statements and budgetary
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statement and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor
fund financial statements and the individual fund financial statements and budgetary schedules are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 22, 2017 on our
consideration of City of Austell, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
City of Austell, Georgia's internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance.

Snellville, Georgia
June 22, 2017
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City of Austell, Georgia
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Management's discussion and analysis provides an objective and easily readable analysis of the City of Austell,
Georgia's (the City) financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions or conditions. The analysis
provides current fiscal year summary financial information for the City of Austell, Georgia and should be read in
conjunction with the City's financial statements and transmittal letter.

Financial Highlights
• The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the

most recent fiscal yearby $26,626,912 (net position). Of this amount, $738,743 (unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

• The City had a decrease in net positions of ($284,402) compared to an increase of $703,298 in the prior
fiscal year. Decreases in franchise revenues and court fines had the greatest impact on this change.

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $11,447,887. This represents a decrease from the prior fiscal year of approximately
($1,833,448) due primarily to the decrease in franchise fees.

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $3,897,217 or 56%
of total current fiscal year General Fund expenditures. In the prior year, unassigned fund balance was
$5,156,013 or 80% of General Fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The City's basic financial statements include three components; 1) Government-wide financial statements, 2) Fund
financial statements, and 3) Notes to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements and fund financial
statements provide different pictures of the City of Austell, Georgia. The government-wide financial statements
provide an overall picture of the government's financial standing, split between governmental activities and
proprietary fund activities.

The Stalement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and deferred outflows and liabilities
and deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities reports how the City's net position changed during the current fiscal year. All current
fiscal year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when the cash is received or paid. An important
purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the City's distinct activities or
functions on revenues provided by the City's taxpayers.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into three kinds of activities:
• Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the police, fire,

community development, and general administration. The majority of these activities are financed by
property taxes, occupational taxes, intergovernmental revenue (SPLOST), franchise taxes, and ownership
fees.
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City of Austell, Georgia
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

• Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost of
certain services it provides. The City's water and sewer system, stormwater system, solid waste, and the
Threadmill Complex are reported here.

• Component units - The City has one legally separate entity, Austell Natural Gas System. Although legally
separate, this "component unit" is important because the City is financially accountable for it.

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 13-15of this report.

Fund Financial Statements
A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or
objectives. Within the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the City's most significant
funds rather than the City as a whole. Major funds are separately reported while all others are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for non-major funds is provided in the form of combining
statements in a later section of this report.

The City of Austell has two kinds of funds:
• Governmental funds - The majority of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which

focus on how money flows in and out of those funds and the balances left at fiscal year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method identified as the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted into cash. Governmental fund information assists in determiningwhether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. The relationship or
differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds are detailed in a reconciliation following the fund financial statements.

The basic governmental fund financials are presented on pages 16-21 of this report.

The City maintains one (1) General Fund, four (4) special revenue funds and five (5) capital projects funds. The
City's General Fund is used for normal recurring activities of the City (i.e., police, fire, recreation, public works, and
general government). The City's special revenue funds are: Confiscated Assets, Emergency Telephone System,
MultipleGrants, and Hotel/Motel Tax funds. The capital projects funds are: 2005 Cobb County SPLOST, 2011
Cobb County SPLOST, 2016 Cobb County SPLOST, AACIC and Douglas County SPLOST. Of these funds, the
General Fund, Multiple Grants Fund, 2005 Cobb County SPLOST Fund, 2011 Cobb County SPLOST Fund, 2016
Cobb County SPLOST, and the Austell Area Community Council Fund are considered major funds and are
presented separately in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. Data from the remaining governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregate presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

• Proprietary Funds - The City of Austell, Georgia charges customers for the services it provides, whether
to outside customers or to other units within the City. These services are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary
funds) are identical to the business-typeactivities that are reported in the government-wide statements, but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. These are
reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the City charges a fee. The
City of Austell reports four proprietary funds which are classified as enterprise funds. The enterprise funds
are Water and Sewer, Stormwater, Solid Waste, and the Threadmill Complex funds. Of these funds, the
Water and Sewer Fund, Stormwater and Threadmill Complex Fund are considered major funds.
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City of Austell, Georgia
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

The basic enterprise fund financial statements are presented on pages 22-25 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The financial statements include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide
information that is more detailed. The notes are essential for a better understanding of the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

The notes are presented on pages 26-49 of this report.

Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning an analysis of pension plan funding progress. Required supplemental
information can be found following the basic financial statements. The combining statements referred to earlier in
connection with non-major governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information along with other individual fund budgetary information.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $26,626,912 at the close
of the most recent fiscal year.

A portion of the City's net position (69%) reflects its investment in capital assets such as land, buildings,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The City has restricted net position of $7,434,064 which is restricted for capital construction, law enforcement
activities, public safety activities, tourism and development, and community enhancements as compared to
$7,861,341 of restricted net position of the prior fiscal year. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position
$738,743 may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position,
governmental activities, business-type activities, and the City's discretely presented component unit.

Net Position
As noted earlier the City's combined net position totals $26,626,912 (excluding the City's component unit).
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City of Austell, Georgia
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities decreased the City's net assets by ($705,072). This can be attributed to overall franchise
revenue decreasing substantially.

Revenues for Governmental Activities decreased by 22% compared to 2015.

Governmental Activities
Program Revenues and Expenses

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015

2016

Revenues
General government
Public safety & courts
Publicworks
Culture and recreation
Housing and development
Tourism and economic development
Interest on long-term debt

$ 264,137
763,969
927,530
432,665
40,274

Totals $ 2,428,575

2016 2015 2015

Expenses Revenues Expenses
$ 940,163

4,755,040
1,380,310
847,871
200,804

1,804
9,117

$ $ 1,027,466
4,398,624
3,172,065
,844,926
87,523
4,448
14,995

964,219
2,585,651
413,217
36,261

$ 8,135,109 $ 3,999,348 $ 9,550,047

Governmental Activities
Revenues by Source

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015

2016 2015

Charges for Service $ 696,528 8% $ 824,619 8%
Operating grants and contributions 265,947 3% 10,509 0%
Capital grants and contributions 1,466,100 18% 3,164,220 29%
Property taxes 632,335 8% 547,923 5%
Other taxes and ownership fees 5,008,858 60% 5,993,739 56%
Unrestricted investment earnings 110,209 1% 116,931 1%
Miscellaneous 73,241 1% 81,830 1%
Penalties& Interest 10,490 0% 1,536 0%
Intergovernmental 107,624 1% 103,665 0%

Totals $ 8,371,332 100% $ 10,754,972 100%

Business-Type Activities
Major revenue sources for the proprietary funds were charges for services of $5,074,967. This is a 7% increase
from the previous fiscal year. Expenses for the proprietary funds are $5,672,317 which is a 7% increase from the
previous fiscal year. This increase is mostly the result of water usage for the fiscal year 2016, as well as the
addition of garbage services provided to all citizens within the City limits.
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City of Austell, Georgia
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues Expenses Revenues
Threadmill Complex $ 1,208,874 $ 1,259,062 $ 1,234,876
Water and Sewer 3,191,148 3,508,458 2,861,531
Stormwater 399,486 455,082 399,617
SolidWaste 352,184 449,715 301,257

Totals $ 5,151,692 $ 5,672,317 $ 4,797,281

Business-type Activities
Program Revenues and Expenses

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2016 and June 30,2015
2016 2016 2015 2015

Expenses
$ 1,324,380

3,180,705
412,974
380,966

$ 5,299,025

Business-type Activities
Revenues by Source

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2016 and June 30,2015

2016 2015
Charges for Service $5,074,967 99% $ 4,770,286 99%
Capital Grants and Contributions 76,725 1% 26,995 1%
Unrestricted investment earnings 0 0% 117 0%

Totals $5,151,692 100% $ 4,797,398 100%

Financial Analysis of the City's Individual Funds
The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliancewith finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds
The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
available resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2016, the City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of approximately
$11.4 million. Of this total, approximately 3.7 million or 32% constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is
available for spending in the next fiscal year. The remainder of fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted,
committed, or assigned as to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed for a variety of restricted purposes.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, unassigned
fund balance was approximately $3.8 million, while total fund balance was approximately $4.1 million. As a
measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 56% of total General Fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 59% of that same amount.

10



City of Austell, Georgia
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

The fund balance of the General Fund decreased dramatically by ($1,406,273) during the fiscal year due to
franchise taxes decreasing substantially as a result of a decline in gas sales for Austell Gas system.

The fund balance of the 2005 Cobb County SPLOST Fund decreased ($324,311) during the fiscal year. Key
factors in this decrease is that the City completed resurfacing projects. The fund is no longer receiving revenue as
this tax has expired. Fund balancewill continue to decrease until all funds are spent.

The fund balance of the 2011 Cobb County SPLOST Fund decreased ($344,438) during the fiscal year. Key
factors in this decrease is that the City purchased additional public safety equipment. The fund received revenue for
the first six months of the fiscal year. Fund balancewill continue to decrease until all funds are spent.

The fund balance of the 2016 Cobb County SPLOST Fund increased by $486,957 during the fiscal year. This is
new SPLOST referendum that passed in March, 2015 beginning January 2016. Six months of revenue have been
collected in the 2016 fiscal year.

The fund balance of the Multiple Grants Fund decreased ($14,395) during the fiscal year as a result of the matching
funds for LCI Streetscapes grants.

Enterprise Funds
The City's enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Net assets for the Water and Sewer fund increased by $309,190 due to increases in capital contributions. The
Threadmill, Stormwater, and Solid Waste Funds change in net assets was a combined increase of $111,480,
resulting in total net asset increase of $420,670.

Budgetary Highlights
The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each legally
adopted annual operating budget is at the department level. The most significant budgeted fund is the General
Fund. The City Council amended the General Fund budget at various times throughout the fiscal year. The
amendments to total expenditures were offset by amendments to total revenues and did not affect the overall
budget.

Capital Assets
The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type
activities for the current fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was $10,757,475 and $7,989,818 respectively. This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure and
construction in progress. The major additions and deletions to capital for the fiscal year were:

• Added newvehicles and equipment for public safety.
• Added new infrastructure and equipment purchasedwith SPLOST funds.

At June 30, 2016, the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 47% depreciated. The business­
type activities are 53% depreciated.

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the Basic Financial Statements of this
report.

Long-Term Debt
During the current fiscal year, the City retired $212,918 of outstanding capital lease obligations. At the end of the
current fiscal year, the City of Austell had total debt outstanding of $1,922,814 in which the majority of the debt
included $1,453,987 in pension liability.

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 7 of the Basic Financial Statements section
of this report.
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City of Austell, Georgia
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Economic Conditions Affecting the City
Key assumptions for fiscal year 2017 are summarized as follows:

• The Gas System ownership fees were budgeted to be approximately $3.7 million. Anticipated revenue at
the current rate of 9% gross sales is expected to be slightly less for 2017.

• On September 18,2009, the City of Austell, Georgia was flooded and almost 700 of its approximately 2,500
homes were severely affected. The HMGP Grant program continues impacting the City as it prepares to
maintain and repair the properties of the land that was purchased.

• 2016 SPLOST referendum was passed allowing the City to continue to improve transportation, enhance
parks and purchase needed public safety equipment.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances, compliance with finance­
related laws, and regulations and demonstrate the City's commitment to public accountability.Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or request for additional information should be addressed to Denise
Soesbee, Finance Director, City of Austell, 2716 Broad Street, SW, Austell, Georgia 30106.

A complete set of financial statements for the City's component unit, Austell Natural Gas System, may be obtained
at the entity's administrative offices at 2838 Joe Jerkins Blvd; P.O. Box 685, Austell, Georgia 30106.
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Prol[am Revenues
Charges Operating Capital

for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs EXEenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 940,163 $ $ 264,137 $
Public safety and courts 4,755,040 554,763 209,206
Public works 1,380,310 927,530
Culture and recreation 847,871 101,491 1,810 329,364
Housing and development 200,804 40,274
Tourism and economic development 1,804
Interest on long-term debt 9,117 -----

Total governmental activities 8,135,109 696,528 265,947 1,466,100
Business-type activities:

Threadmill 1,259,062 1,208,874
Water and sewer 3,508,458 3,114,423 76,725
Stormwater 455,082 399,486
Solid waste 449,715 352,184

Total business-type activities 5,672,317 5,074,967 76,725
Total primary government $ 13,807,426 $ 5,771,495 $ 265,947 $ 1,542,825
Component unit:

Austell Natural Gas System $ 39,483,836 $ 42,310,274 $ $

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Franchise
Occupational
Insurance Premium
Sales and excise
Other
Penalties & interest
Intergovernmental
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total general revenues
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year, adjusted

Net position - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016

2005 2011
Cobb County Cobb County

General SPLOST SPLOST
Fund Fund Fund

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 100,658 $ 600,000 $ 1,751,858
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for

uncollectibles)
Taxes 187,225
Accounts 18,188
Other 250,000

Due from other governments
Due from other funds 1,468,385 44,165 485,569
Due from component unit 3,067,585
Prepaid items 206,603
Advances to other funds

Total assets 5,298,644 644,165 2,237,427

Liabilities
Accounts payable 358,149 21,300
Accrued liabilities

Salaries and wages 90,746
Customer Deposits 1,900

Due to other funds 368,221 1,429,618
Due to other governments
Unearned revenues

Total liabilities 819,016 1,450,918

Deferred Inflows
Unavailable revenues 375,808

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 1,194,824 1,450,918

Fund balances
Nonsepndable -

Prepaid items 206,603
Resticted -

Capital projects 644,165 786,509
Law enforcement activities
Public safety activities
Tourism and economic development
Community enhancements

Unassigned 3,897,217
Total fund balances 4,103,820 644,165 786,509

Total liabilities, deferred inflows

and fund balance $ 5,298,644 $ 644,165 $ 2,237,427

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Total fund balances -- total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds:

Unavailable revenues

Deferred inflows and outflowsrelated to the net pension obligation
is not a current asset or liability:

Deferred outflows
Deferred inflows

Long-term liabilities are not due in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds:

Capital leases
Accrued interest
Compensated absences
Net pension obligation

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanyingnotes to the basic [mancial statements
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$ 11,447,887

10,757,475

375,808

589,210
(304,335)

(293,187)
(2,315)

(125,077)
(1,161,736)

$ 21,283,730





CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2005 2011
Cobb County Cobb County

General SPLOST SPLOST
Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:
Taxes $ 5,631,325 $ $
Licenses and permits 40,274
Intergovernmental 107,624 678,668
Charges for services 17,616
Fines and Forfeitures 399,999
Contributions and donations 14,137
Investment income 40
Miscellaneous 103,301

Total revenues 6,314,316 678,668
Expenditures:

Current
General government 721,551
Judicial 203,573
Public safety 3,834,617
Public works 854,184
Culture and recreation 681,730
Housing and development 199,035
Tourism and economic development

Capital outlay 415,247 324,311 815,351
Debt service

Principal 202,226
Interest 5,529

Total expenditures 6,909,937 324,311 1,023,106

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (595,621) (324,311) (344,438)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (882,741)
Capital lease proceeds
Sale of capital assets 72,089

Total other financing sources (uses) (810,652)

Net change in fund balances (1,406,273) (324,311) (344,438)

Fund balance - beginning of the year 5,510,093 968,476 1,130,947

Fund balance - end of year $ 4,103,820 $ 644,165 $ 786,509

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

The net effect of other miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net position. This is
the amount of net book value of assets sold during the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current fmancial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the difference
between the beginning and ending unavailable revenue balances in the
current period.

The issuance oflong-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current fmancial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal oflong-term
debt consumes the current fmancial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment oflong-term debt and related items.

Repayment of long term debt
Debt issuance

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not requre the
use of current fmancial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in net pension obligation and related deferred items
Change in accrued interest payable
Change in compensated absences

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements
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$ (1,833,448)

1,931,624
(735,876)

(249,590)

249,271

212,918
(303,888)

25,120
(2,316)
1,113

$ (705,072)



O~

(£L6'vptl~ s 0~8'£0I'v s £6L'8v£', s £6L'8v£', s .rn~,{Jopue - ~~treluqPund
£600IS'S £600IS'S £60'0I,'S .rn~,(Jo jj~~q - Mtreluq Pund

(£L6'vl'tl) (£Lt90v'1) (00£'191) (00£'191) S~~trelllS:Pund II! ~8treq;) I~N
(L,6'10£) (,S9'018) (S69'80S) (S69'80S) (s~sO) socmog

81I!~trelI!dJ~qIO ralO.l
~nss! lq~a

680'U 680'U SI~SSUIBI!du~JO ~Illswo.y sP~~~Old
(91)O'vL£) (IvL'~88) (S69'80S) (S69'80S) SJ~JSII1!J.l

:(s~sO) seomog 81I!~uelI!dJ~lpO
(910'£l'6) (!Z9'S6S) S6£'Lv£ S6£'LP£ samnpuadxg J~AO

s~nu~M"!IJO (,{~U~!~!J~a)ss~~xa
l'91'18£ L£6'606'9 IOn6~'L IOn6~'L S~J11j!pu~dxa1ll10.l
II9't>t> £S~ vIS V98'8SS l'9£'OSl' lu~wdol~MP ptre 81I!snoq1ll10.l
FLS'I1 OSt6£ V~8'OS l'~8'OS IU~W~~JoJUaapo;)
ozv'n 080'v8£ OOS'Oll' 000'~6£ sa!lm~uJ J~lpO
(L9S) L%'9L 000'9L 000'91 81I!U0zptre 81I!U1fBid
P81'L 9S£'PI OVS'" oes'tz uouoedsur ~A!paIOld

- lu~wdopA~p ptre 81I!snoH

061'U SO£'6IL ,6v'16L S6v'118 u0!lu~J~~Jptre anujno 1ll10.l
IL6'£ 6~v 98S 00l"06S 00l"Ol9 uouansnntupa q.rnd
OIL'6~ S86'06 S69'OlI S69'On Sa!I!A!l~BIU!~~dS
6LI'~ 1~8'£ 000'9 000'9 SPunOJjj,{uld

uap.rn8Al!UUWWO;)
OH'9£ OLO'S£ OOl>'l'L OOv'PL J~IU~~Al!UUWWO;)

- u0!lu~J~~Jptre ~J11jrn;)
SIO'08 9£l'8S8 l'SV'8£6 l'Sl"£06 qJOM ~!Iqnd 1ll10.l
9H'O~ 8l'£Sn l'89'Sl'l P89'SPI doqs pus ~~treu~I1I!UW
nS'8£ 886'1~ 00S'09 00S'09 I!1lI~P~IUWUJ
OLI'" OOI'I1L Oa'~£L Oa'LIL SlaaJjSptre s,{uMq3ili

- S'lJOM~!Iqlld
SIV'OlI 618'~68'£ L£t£lO'P L£L'PSO'P Al~JBsoqqnd j1!lo.l
£SI'9£ £~tW8'1 9L£'8£8'1 9L£'8£8'1 uonansnmnpe ~-,!d
£98'LI zzs'sts 06£'L££ 068'8L£ srouosudJO ,{poISn;)
WV'99 690'ILL'I ILv'L£8'1 ILP'L£8'1 u0!laJjs!1I!WPuaO!Iod

- AlaJBs~!Iqlld
,8V'l' £LS'£O~ SSO'80~ SSO'OO~ imoo rad!~!UUw

Svv'6S ISS'llL 966'08L 966'008 lu~ww~A08 IllJ~ua81ll10.l
061'6S 908'L8P 966'9PS 966'9£S M!IUJjS!1I!WPUIU1~U~D
SS~ SPL'££~ OOO'P£O 000'P8~ ~A!lulspI~'l

- luawwaA08 raJau~
saJDj!puadx3:

(08I'Po£'I) 91£'PI£'9 96V'8£9'L 96v'S£9'L sanuaA~"!Ij1!lo.l
10£'PZ 10£'£01 000'6L 000'6L snoaueIP~s!W
L£I'PI L£I'PI snoneuop pue sU0!lnq!lluo;)
017 OP omoour IS~l~ll1l
(ZZS'61£) 666'66£ "S'6IL JC:S'6IL S~J11j!~JloJpua s~lI!.!l
(VS9'L) 919'LI OO£'SZ OO£'SZ s~~!Al~s10Jsa8.rnq;)
PZ9'L l'Z9'LOI 000'001 000'001 IllIU~WW~A08J~111l
669'OZ pa'op SLS'61 SLS'61 SI!Wladptre s~su~on
168'£ 161'S OO£'P OO£'P ISaJ~11I!ptre sa!lllluad
Sl8'IL Sl8'16P OOO'OZl' OOO'OZ17 s~xal =!WaJd ptre rau0!ludn~~o
(S91'£Otl) S£I'09l"P 00£'£99'S 00£'£99'S saxal1atpo ptre as!ll~treld
o£ Z£O'PS OOO'l'S OOO'PS s~xal ~s!~x~ptre saras
ZS9'£9 $ ,SI'L 19 $ OOS'£SS $ OOS'£S, $ s~xal ,\jJ~d01d ra1~u~D

saRU3A"H
3:::>NVnIVA IVJU::>V .L3:~OfUl .L3:~OOH

'lVNIiI 'lVNmUIO

910l '0£ 3:NJ1f 03:0N3: HV3:A 3:H.LHOd
'lVO.L::>V ONV .L3:~OOH - 3:::>NV'lVH ONOd

NI S3:~NVH::> ONV S3:HO.LION3:dX3: 'S3:0N3:A3:H;l0 .LN3:W3:.LV.LS
ONO;I'lVH3:N3:~

VI~H03:~ '113:.LSOV ;10 AU::>



CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
MULTIPLE GRANTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 1,895,000 $ 1,895,000 $ 195,138 $ (1,699,862)
Contributions 2,482 2,482

Total Revenues 1,895,000 1,895,000 197,620 (1,697,380)
EXPENDITURES

Public Works 1,875,000 1,875,000 212,015 1,662,985
Culture and Recreation 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total Expenditures 1,895,000 1,895,000 212,015 1,682,985
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures {14,395) (14,395)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances (14,395) (14,395)

Fund balance - beginning of year (115,818) (115,818) (115,818)

Fund balance- end of year $ (115,818) $ {115,818) $ {130,213) $ {14,395)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. Basis of Presentation

The fmancial statements of the City of Austell, Georgia (the "City") have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica (GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's
accounting policies are described below.

B. The Reporting Entity

The City of Austell, which was founded in 1885,operates under the mayor-Council form of government and
provides the following services to its citizens: public safety (police and fire); highways and streets; water,
sewer, stormwater, and sanitation; public improvements; planning and zoning; and general administrative
services.

Based upon criteria set forth by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 61 "The Financial
ReportingEntity: Omnibus an Amendment of GASB StatementsNo. 14and 34," the accompanying financial
statements present the City and its component unit, for which the City is considered to be fmancially
accountable. The discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government­
wide fmancial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
The Austell Natural Gas System (the "System") is shown as a discretely presented component unit in the
accompanying financial statements. The purpose of the System is to provide natural gas and related services
throughout the City of Austell. The System currently serves customers in the City of Austell and residents
of Cobb County and Douglas County, Georgia. The Mayor appoints all members to the System's Board and
the City is financially responsible for the payment of the debt issued by the System. The System has a July
31 fiscal year-end. Amounts shown as due from component unit and due to primary governmentmay differ
due to the Cityhaving a June 30 fiscal year-end, whereas the Systemhas a July 31 fiscal year-end. Complete
financial statements for the System can be obtained at the System's administrative offices at 2838 Joe Jerkins
Boulevard, Austell, Georgia 30106.

C. Government-Wide Statements and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide fmancial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component unit. (For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide fmancial statements).
Government-wide fmancial statements do not provide information by fund, but distinguish between the
City's governmental activities and business-type activities. Governmental activities, which are normally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately fromthe legally separate componentunit for which the primary government is financially
accountable. The statement of net position will include non-current assets and non-current liabilities. In
addition, the government-wide statement of activities reflects depreciation expense on the City's capital
assets.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offsetby program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiablewith a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1)charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants
and contributionsthat are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. Taxes and other itemsnot consideredprogram revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
26



CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

C. Government-Wide Statements and Fund Financial Statements - (Continued):

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund fmancial
statements.

A. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide fmancial statements are reported using the economic resource measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund fmancial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Governmental fund
fmancial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgements, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, and interest associatedwith
the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the City.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange
Transactions," the corresponding assets (receivables) in non-exchange transactions are recognized in the period
in which the underlying exchange occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, when all eligibility
requirements have been met, or when resources are received, depending on the revenue source.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund fmancial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The 2005, 2011 and 2016 Cobb County SPLOST Capital Projects Funds accounts for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities and improvements that were approved by the voters of Cobb County,
Georgia through the special purpose local option sales tax referendum. The amounts collected in these funds
are restricted to be spent on capital projects throughout the City.

The Austell Area Community Council Capital Projects accounts for monies contributed by the Norfolk
Southern Company for the purpose of constructing public facilities throughout the City or for other
betterments of the community. The amounts collected in this fund including interest revenue earned are
committed for certain items as approved by the Austell Area Community Council Board for the betterment
of the community which may include capital projects.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation - (Continued):

The Multiple Grants Special Revenue Fund accounts for grant monies received from a variety of Federal
and State agencies. These specific revenue sources are either restricted or committed to expenditures for
specified purposes other than debt services or capital projects.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types within the nonmajor governmental funds:

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted and committed to
expenditures for specific purposes.

The capital projects fund account for acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than
those fmanced by proprietary funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Threadmill Complex Fund accounts for the operations of the Threadmill Complex which is used
for City offices and spaces rented to private businesses and other governmental agencies.

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the activity of the City's utility system.

The Stormwater Fund accounts for the activity ofthe City's stormwater system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund as a nonmajor proprietary fund:

The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for the City's solid waste collection, recycling, and disposal
activities. The City does contract with a private corporation for these services.

In accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations, the City applies all Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GAS B) pronouncements. The City applies GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A1CPA
Pronouncements. StatementNo. 62 incorporated into the GASB's authoritative literature certain accounting
and financial reporting guidance issued on or before November 30, 1989.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds are charges for goods and services provided. Operating expenses of the enterprise funds
include the cost of these goods and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this defmition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Budgets

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all fund. Capital Projects Funds have a project length budget.
The budgets for the proprietary funds are for management control purposes and are not required to be
reported. Budgets are adopted on a modified accrual basis, which is consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles for governmental funds. All appropriations lapse at fiscal yearend. Encumbrance
accounting - under with purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources
are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation- is not employed by the City.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

F. Deposits and Investments

Georgia Statutes authorize the City to invest in the following: (1) obligations of Georgia or any other States;
(2) obligations of the United States; (3) obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States
government or one of its agencies; (4) obligations of any corporation of the United States government; (5)
prime banker's acceptances; (6) the State of Georgia local government investment pool; (7) repurchase
agreements; and (8) obligations of any other political subdivision of the State of Georgia. Any investment
or deposit in excess of the federal depository insured amounts must be collateralized by securities equal to at
least 110%of the excess deposits.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of less
than 90 days are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments are reported at fair value as determined by
quoted market prices.

G. Short-Term and Long-Term Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that is representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year, as well as all other outstandingbalances between funds is reported as "due to/from other funds
and advances to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."
Customer accounts receivable include billed but uncollected amounts and unbilled receivables based upon a
pro rata amount of subsequentmonthly billings. Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained based on
historical results adjusted to reflect current conditions.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund fmancial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available fmancial resources.

H. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inlfirst-out (FIFO) methods.
Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time
the individual item is purchased. Inventories (if any) reported in the governmental funds are equally offset
by a nonspendable fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute "available, spendable resources"
even though they are a component of net current assets.

I. Prepaid Items

Paymentsmade to vendors for servicesthat will benefit periods beyondJune 30, 2016, are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items reported in the governmental
funds are equally offset by a nonspendable fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute
"available, spendable resources" even though they are a component of net current assets. The city uses the
consumption method to account for prepaid items.

J. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified
as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants,
if applicable. Other restricted assets exist due to enabling legislation, grant agreements or other contractual
requirement.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column
in the governmental-wide fmancial statements. Capital assets are defmedby the City as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Infrastructure (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks,
and similar items) prior to July 1, 2003 have not been reported.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component unit, are depreciated using the straight
line methods over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Years

Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Computer equipment

25-50
30
5-7
7-10
3-10
3-5

L. Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
There is no liability for non-vesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits since the City does not
have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the City. All vacation pay is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for
these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

M. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts are accrued and amortized over the term of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable discount or premium. Issuance costs are expensed 'inthe period in
which they are incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs in the currentperiod. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other fmancing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuance are reported as other fmancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds, are reported as debt service expenditures.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

N. Fund Equity and Net Position

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance." Fund equity
for all other reporting is classified as "net position."

Fund Balance -Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets, deferred inflows of
resources, and liabilities under the current financial resources management focus of accounting. In the fund
financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e. items that are not expected to be converted to cash) or (b)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed - Fund balances are reported as committedwhen they can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal vote and passage of an ordinance of the City Council. Only
the City Council may modify or rescind the commitment by passage of a subsequent ordinance.

Assigned - Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the City's intent to
be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The fundbalance policy approved
by an Ordinance of the City Council expressly delegates the authority to assign fundbalance to the City's
Finance Director.

Unassigned - Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do not
meet any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the General
Fund. Only deficits in fund balances may be reported as unassigned fund balance in other governmental
funds.

Flow Assumptions - when both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the City's policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as
they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City's policy to use fund balance in the
following order: (1) Committed, (2) Assigned, and (3) Unassigned.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources in reporting, which utilizes the economic resources measurement
focus. Amounts shown as net investment in capital assets are made up of capital asset costs, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used (i.e. the amount that
the City has spent) for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported
as restricted using the same definition as used for restricted fund balance as described in the section above.
All other net position is reported as unrestricted. The City applies restricted resources first when an expense
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. The City's
government-wide statement of net position reports $7,434,064 of restricted net position of which $1,991,676
is restricted by enabling legislation.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued):

O. Management Estimates

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenditures/expensesduring the period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

P. Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided and used in the fund financial statements are accounted for as revenue,
expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in
the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

Q. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate fmancial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense / expenditures) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category as of June 30, 2016which is deferred pension outflows recognized in the Statements ofNet Position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate fmancial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City recognizes deferred pension inflows in its Statements
of Net Position and also recognizes unavailable revenue, which is reported only in the governmental funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes and grants.

R. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City of
Austell Retirement Plan (ARP) and additions to / deductions fromARP's fiduciarynet position, all have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported in the ARP. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions, if applicable) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS

The City of Austell, Georgia employs the following procedures in establishing its annual budget:

1. The administration of the City submits a proposed operating budget to the Mayor and City Council. The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means for fmancing them.

2. Prior to any action by the Mayor and City Council, the City publishes the proposed budget and makes copies
available to the residents of the City.

3. Public meetings are held to obtain taxpayer comments.
4. The budget is then legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Mayor and City council.
5. Budgetary control is exercised at the department level. The City administration is authorized to transfer

budget amounts within a department; any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a department require a
budget amendment by the Mayor and City Council. The City did not significantly amend the budgets for
any of its funds during the fiscal year ended June 30,2016.

6. Budgets are prepared on the GAAP basis.

The following funds and General Fund departments had excesses of actual expenditures over appropriations for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016:

General Fund -
Housing and Development -

Planning & Zoning
Austell Area Council Capital Projects Fund -

General Government

$ 567

$ 297

These over expenditures were funded by available fund balance.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

3. DEPOSITS

Total reported cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2016 are summarized as follows:

Cash and cash equiwlents Amount
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of Deposit

s 4,832,329
490,000

$ 5,322,329

Interest rate risk - The City has a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
a depository fmancial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State statutes and City policy require all deposits
and investments (other than Federal or State government instruments) to be collateralized by depository insurance,
obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public authorities, counties, or municipalities. As of June 30,
2016, $4,655,079 of the City's bank balance of$5,322,329 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized
Collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution or its agent

$

4,655,079

Total $ 4,655,079

4. RECEIVABLES

Property taxes are levied on property values assessed as of January 1. The tax bills are levied on July 1. Tax
billings are mailed in the month of November and considered due upon receipt by the taxpayer, however, the
actual due date is December 31 st. After this date, the bill becomes delinquent and penalties and interest may be
assessed by the City. Property taxes are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows of resources when levied.
Revenues are recognized when available.

For the City's Stormwater Enterprise Fund, residential stormwater fees are billed annually on the same date as
the property tax bill as noted above and is attached to the property tax bill.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL1 GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

4. RECEIVABLES - (Continued)

Receivables at June 30, 2016, for the City's individualmajor funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including
the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

2016 Cobb Other
County SPLOST Multiple Grants Nonmajor

General Fund Fund Fund Funds

Receivables
Taxes $ 229,488 $ $ $ 442
Acounts 20,663 18,461
Due from other
governments 211,883 75,395

Other 250,000

Gross Receivables 500,151 211,883 75,395 18,903
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles (44,738)

Net Total Receivables $ 455,413 $ 211,883 $ 75,395 $ 18,903

Proprietary Funds
Threadmill Water and Stormwater
Complex Sewer Management Solid Waste

Accounts $ 238 $ 637,055 $ 347,599 $ 50,510
Intergovernmental

Gross Receivable 238 637,055 347,599 50,510
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles (250,000) (19,000)

Net Total Receivable $ 238 $ 387,055 $ 347,599 $ 31,510

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELLl GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

5. PROPERTYl PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 545,640 $ $ $ 545,640
Construction in progress 24,327 (24,327)
Total 569,967 (24,327) 545,640

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 6,689,992 273,823 6,963,815
Buildings and improvements 8,223,268 8,223,268
Machinery and equipment 428,065 428,065
Vehicles 333,047 333,047
Computer equipment 31,785 2,303 34,088
Total capital assets being depreciated 15,706,157 276,126 15,982,283

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure 3,505,084 147,609 3,652,693
Buildings and improvements 3,910,388 236,540 4,146,928
Machinery and equipment 344,160 34,003 378,163
Vehicles 333,047 333,047
Computer equipment 19,454 7,820 27,274
Total capital assets being depreciated 8,112,133 425,972 8,538,105

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7,594,024 (149,846) 7,444,178

Business-Type Activities capital assets, net $ 8,163,991 $ (149,846) $ (24,327) $ 7,989,818

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Threadmill complex
Water and sewer
Stormwater

$ 260,697
65,427
99,848

Total depreciation expense $ 425,972

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Austell Natural Gas System
Capital assets, not beingdepreciated:
Land $ 422,463 $ $ $ 422,463
Construction in progress 279,175 458,075 737,250

Total 701,638 458,075 1,159,713

Capital assets beingdepreciated:
Infrastructure 77,661,865 3,507,598 (313,864) 80,855,599
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2,756,054 573,454 (415,618) 2,913,890
Vehicles 1,182,118 202,390 (115,333) 1,269,175

Total capital assets beingdepreciated 81,600,037 4,283,442 (844,815) 85,038,664

Less accumulateddepreciation: 61,525,138 3,169,162 (687,766) 64,006,534

Total capital assets beingdepreciated, net 20,074,899 1,114,280 (157,049) 21,032,130

Austell Natural Gas System capital assets, net $ 20,776,537 $ 1,572,355 $ (157,049) $ 22,191,843

Depreciation of the originalcost of depreciableassets is calculatedusing the composite straight-linemethod at the
followingrates:

Gas utility system
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Electronicdata procession equipment
Transportation vehicles

3.25%
10.00
16.67
25.00

This composite method of depreciation as allowed by GASB No. 34 refers to the depreciation of a grouping of
dissimilar assets of the same class using a uniform rate of depreciation as noted above. GASB 34 allows the rate
of depreciation to be calculated in different ways. The method chosen by the Gas System is to base the rate of
depreciation on its assessment of the life of the group of assets as a whole.

(See Independent Auditor'S Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

6. OPERATING LEASES

The City is the lessor of office space at the Threadmill Complex. During fiscal year 2016, the City received
$1,208,874 in operating lease revenue. The carrying value of the building and improvements of$4,541,864(cost
of $8,868,165 less accumulated depreciation of $4,326,301, which includes $260,326 depreciation expense in
fiscal year 2016) is included in capital assets in the Threadmill Complex Fund. Most leases are year-to-year and
expire at various times throughout the year. However, there are three (3) leases with terms extending beyond the
end of the next fiscal year.

Lease revenues from these tenants in future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal year ending Total Revenues

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

2022-2026
2027-2028

$ 773,507
780,000
588,000
12,000
12,000
60,000
21,000

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities reported in the government-wide fmancial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Portion

Governmental Activities
Capital leases $ 202,217 $ 303,888 $ (212,918) $ 293,187 $ 53,707
Compensated Absences 126,190 106,427 (107,540) 125,077 35,000
Net pension liability 674,357 487,379 1,161,736

Total Governmental-Type
Activity Long-TermDebt $ 1,002,764 $ 410,315 $ (320,458) $ 1,580,000 $ 88,707

Business-Type Activities
Compensated Absences $ 48,797 $ 31,287 $ (29,521) $ 50,563 $ 12,640
Net pension liability 169,641 122,610 292,251

Total Business-TypeActivity
Long-TermDebt $ 218,438 $ 153,897 $ (29,521) $ 342,814 $ 12,640

For governmental funds, compensated absences are liquidated by the General Fund from which employees'
salaries are paid. For business-type activities, compensated absences are liquidated by the ThreadmiIIComplex
Fund, theWater and SewerFund, the Stormwater Fund, and the SolidWaste Fund fromwhich employees' salaries
are paid.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

7. LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued)

Capital Leases. The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for fmancing the acquisition of various
public safety and public works vehicles. The lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes
(titles transfer at the end of the lease terms) and, therefore, have been recorded at the present values of the future
minimum lease payments as of the date of their inceptions. As of June 30, 2016, the City had assets with a net
book value of$176,307 (asset value of $179,272 less accumulated depreciation of $2,965) under capital leases.
Annual depreciation ($2,965) of these assets under capital leases is included in depreciation expense.

The City's total capital lease debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 53,706 $ 4,839 $ 58,545
2018 62,656 7,852 70,508
2019 64,770 5,738 70,508
2020 66,964 3,544 70,508

2021 45,091 1,491 46,582

Total $ 293,187 $ 23,464 $ 316,651

Interest rates associated with the capital leases range from 3.1% to 3.3%.

Austell Natural Gas System

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2016 is as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Portion

Austell Natural Gas System
Net pension liability $ 2,939,879 $ 1,650,768 $ (2,346,602) $ 2,244,045 $
Net OPEB obligation 178,304 77,615 (14,388) 241,531
Compensated absences 403,107 402,526 (403,107) 402,526 402,526

Total Governmental-Type
Activity Long-Term Debt $ 3,521,290 $ 2,130,909 $ (2,764,097) $ 2,888,102 $ 402,526

(See Independent Auditor's Report)

40



CITY OF AUSTELLl GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

8. INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS

The composition of inter fund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Pa ableFrom
Cobb AustellArea

Water& Multiple Threadmill County Storm- Community
Payable Nonmajor Sewer Grants Complex SPLOST water Council
To General Funds Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Total

General $ $ 38,829 $ $ $ $ 1,382,729 $ $ 46,827 $ 1,468,385
Nonmajor 4,367 4,367
AustellArea

CommunityCouncil 141,501 141,501
MultipleGrantsFund 121,945 121,945
StormwaterFund 138,489 138,489
ThreadmillComplex 2,724 2,724
CobbCountySPLOST 103,420 21,628 286,757 217,349 4,000 633,154

Total $ 368,221 $ 38,829 $ 21,628 $ 286,757 $ 141,501 $ 1,602,802 $ 4,000 $ 46,827 $ 2,510,565

All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3)
payments between funds are made. Note that the $633,154 interfund receivable to the Cobb County SPLOST
Funds consist mainly from the separation of monies in one bank account to three separate bank accounts.
However, $312,385 is due to the various SPLOST Funds for expenditures out of the SPLOST Funds that should.
have been paid out of other non-SPLOST funds.

Advances from/to other funds are as follows:

Payable
From

Payable
To

Threadmill
Co implex
Fund

Austell Area
Community Council $ 3,213,000

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

8. INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS - (Continued)

During fiscal year 2013, the City authorized an interfund agreement between the Austell Area Community
Council Fund (AACC) and its Threadmill Complex Fund in which the AACC Fund advanced $4,590,000 to the
Threadmill Complex Fund in order to payoff its outstanding revenue bonds. The Threadmill Complex Fund
began repaying the balance (plus interest) over nine (9) years commencing on September 1, 2013 and ending on
September 1, 2022. Interest rates range from 3% to 4%. As of June 30, 2016, $459,000 (which represents
principal due on September 1,2016) has been re-classed as a current liability.

Due to/from primary government and component units:

Payable
To

Payable From
Austell
Natural

Gas
System

General $ 3,067,585

At June 30, 2016, Austell Natural Gas System owed the primary government $3,067,585. However, the Gas
System reported a payable of $3,212,519. The difference is a result of the Gas System's fiscal year-end being
July 31, 2016 and reporting $144,934 of additional fees due to the primary government.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follow:

Transfer From
Transfer

To General
Multiple

Threadmill Stormwater Grants

$

Total

$
190,942
241,061

98,061
377,004

$ 907,068Total

$ $ $
190,942
241,061

98,061
352,677 24,327

$ 882,741 $ 24,327 $

$General
Nonrnajor
Threadmill
Stormwater
Solid waste
Water and Sewer
Multiple grants

Transfer are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collecting them to the fund
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
fmance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and (3) use
unrestricted revenues of the General Fund to cover the operational shortfalls of the other funds.

In the Statement of Changes in Activities, additional transfers were recognized in the amount of $249,496 as a
result of the 2011 SPLOST Fund financing of a waterline. Governmental Funds transferred the water line to the
Water and Sewer Fund in which it was recognized as a capital improvement. This increased the total transfers in
the Statement of Activities to $941,295. These transactions were recognized as capital outlay expenditures in the
govemmental funds and as capital contributions in the proprietary funds.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plan - GMA Administered

Plan Description

The City, as authorized by the City Council, has established a defmed benefit pension plan (The City of Austell
Retirement Plan) covering all full-time employees. The City's pension plan is affiliated with the Georgia
Municipal Employee Benefit System (GMEBS), an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the
Georgia Municipal Association. Contributions made by the City are commingled with contributions made by
other members ofGMEBS for investmentpurposes. The City does not own any securities on its own. Investment
income from the securities is allocated on a pro rata basis. The GeorgiaMunicipal Association issues a publicly
available financial report that includes fmancial statements and required supplementary information for GMEBS.
That report may be obtained by writing to Georgia Municipal Association, Risk Management and Employee
Benefit Services, 201 Pryor Street, NW, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 or by calling (404) 688-0472.

As provided by State law, benefit provisions for Participants in GMEBS are established and amended by the
respective employers. As authorized by the City Council, the Plan provides pension benefits and death and
disability benefits for Plan members and beneficiaries. All employees, excluding elected officials, who work
thirty hours or more per week, are eligible to participate immediately upon hiring. Benefits vest after five years
of service. A City employee who retires at age 65 with five years of service is entitled to benefits of 2.25% of
final average earnings in excess of covered compensation. An employee may elect early retirement at age 55
provided he or she has a minimum of 25 years total credited service to receive full benefits, otherwise early
retirement may be elected after only 10years of service for reduced benefits. Elected officials are entitled to $41
for each year of service after reaching normal retirement age. Ten years of service is required for nonservice
related disability benefits. Disability benefits are paid out at 20% of an employee's current salary. Death benefits
are calculated using an actuarial reserve.

At January 1,2016, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, there were 151participants consisting of the
following:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated vested participants not yet receiving benefits
Active employees - vested
Active employees - nonvested

35
34
69
9

Total 147

Contributions

The Plan is subject to minimum funding standards of the Georgia Public Retirement Systems Standard law. The
Board of Trustees of GMEBS has adopted a recommended actuarial funding policy for the Plan which meets
State minimum requirements and will accumulate sufficient funds to provide the benefits under the Plan. The
funding policy for the Plan is to contribute an amount equal to or greater than the recommended contribution
described below. For fiscal year 2016, the actuarially determined contribution rate was 8.23% of covered payroll.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the City's recommended and actual contribution was $278,851 which was
actuarially determined and is expected to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to fmance any unfunded accrued liability. The amount of employer contributions recognized
in the actuarial report dated January 1, 2016 and included in the government-wide statement of activities
amounted to $247,414.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plan - GMA Administered, continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the City reported a liability of$1,453,986 for its net pension liability. The net pension liability
was measured as of September 30, 2015 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1,2016. The
changes in the Net Pension Liability for the year ended September 30, 2015 (the measurement date) were as
follows:

Changes for the year­
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and
actual experience

Contnbutions - Employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contnbutions

Administrative expense
Other

Total Fiduciary Net
Pension Net Pension
Liability Position Liability

$ 8,911,083 $8,067,085 $ 843,998

167,487 167,487
681,983 681,983

121,886 121,886
292,687 (292,687)
88,656 (88,656)

(222,611) (222,611)
(19,975) 19,975

Balances at September 30,2014

Net Changes 748,745 138,757 609,988

Balance at September 30,2015 $ 9,659,828 $8,205,842 $ 1,453,986

Effective January 1, 2015, the Plan was amended to provide for immediate participation for Employees. This
change has no impact on service credited under the Plan and has no impact on benefits. As a result of this change,
all Employees are now included in the valuation. This change has minimal impact on the Plan's liability.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plan - GMA Administered, continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions, continued

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense and deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Service cost
Interest on The Pension Liability (TPL)
Administrative expenses
Expected return on assets
Deferred Inflows -

Expensed portion of current year period differences
between expected and actual experience in TPL

Current year recogniztion of deferred inflows and
outflows established in prior years

Expensed portion of current year period differences between
projected and actual investment earnings

$ 167,487
681,983
19,975

(627,141)

24,378

(126,965)

107,697

Total expense $ 247,414

$209,138 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City's contributions
made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

FNfE Deferred Deferred
June 30, Outflows Inflows

2017 $ 132,074 $ (126,965)
2018 132,074 (126,965)
2019 132,074 (126,965)
2020 132,074

$ 528,296 $ (380,895)

Outstanding balances of deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions as of June 30, 2016 are as
follows:

Outflows Inflows

Contnbutions subsequent to the measurement date $ 209,138 $
Demographic 97,508 (71,880)
Investment 430,788 (156,357)
Assumption change (152,658)

Total $ 737,434 $ (380,895)

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plan - GMA Administered, continued

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Assumptions:

Net Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments
Mortality Rates -
Healthy

7.75%
3.25% plus service based merit increases
3.25%

Disabled
Plan TerminationBasis

RP-2000 CombinedHealthy Mortality Table with sex­
distinct rates, set forward 2 years for males and 1year
for females
RP-2000 Disabled RetireeMortality Table - unisexrates
1994GroupAnnuity Reserving UnisexTable

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January 1,2010 through June 30, 2014.

The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments was determinedusing a building-block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long­
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for eachmajor asset
class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 2015 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term Long-Term
Target ExpectedReal Nominal Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate ofReturn Rate ofReturn

Domestic equity 50.00% 5.95% 9.20%
International equity 15.00% 6.45% 9.70%
Fixed income 25.00% 1.55% 4.80"/0

Real estate 10.00% 3.75% 7.00%

Cash 0.00%
Total 100.00%

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plan - GMA Administered, continued

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the City will be made at the actuarially determined
contribution rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability
To Changes in theDiscount Rate

The following presents the City's net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of7.75 percent, as well
as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage­
point lower or l-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Net Pension Liability

1% Current 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
6.75% 7.75% 8.75%

$ 2,899,771 $ 1,453,986 $ 264,691

Pension Plan Net Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued City of
Austell Retirement Plan fmancial report.

10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City of Austell, Georgia offers its employees an Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Plan (the "Plan") which
is a deferred compensation plan that qualifies as a defmed contribution pension plan. The Plan is administered
by a third party administrator, The Hartford. The City has no fiduciary relationship with the Trust. Accordingly,
the Plan assets are not reported in the City's fmancial statements. Plan provisions and contribution requirements
are established and may be amended by the City's Mayor and Council. At June 30, 2016, there were 22 plan
members in the plan.

Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. Employees may contribute a portion of their gross salary,
not to exceed the IRS guidelines, into the Plans. The Plan allows employees to increase, decrease, stop and restart
deferrals as often as they wish without penalties or fees. Total employee contributions for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016 were $82,655.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

11. JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Atlanta, Georgia area, is a
member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). Dues to the ARC are assessed at the County level and are,
accordingly, paid by Cobb County. Membership in the ARC is required by the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational structure of the ARC in Georgia. The
ARC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county and various municipalities of the area.
OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the ARC.
Separate fmancial statements may be obtained fromARC, 40 Courtland Street, NE, Atlanta, Georgia 30303.

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; andnatural disasters. The Cityhasjoined together with other municipalities
in the State as part of the Georgia Interlock Risk ManagementAgency Property and Liability Insurance Fund and
the Georgia Municipal Association Group Self-InsuranceWorker's Compensation Fund, public entity risk pools
currently operating as common risk management and insurance programs for member local governments.

As part of these risk pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the
pools, to cooperate with the pool's agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the
funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordancewith any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents
which could result in the funds being required to pay any claim ofloss. The City is also to allow the pool's agents
and attorneys to represent the City in investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of litigation arising out
of any claim made against the City within the scope of loss protection furnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in the member
government contract and in accordance with the workers' compensation law of Georgia. The funds are to pay all
cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the members, all interest accruing after entry of
judgement, and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.

Settled claims have not exceeded the coverages in the past three (3) fiscal years.

The City carries commercial insurance for other risks of losses. For insured programs, there have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage in the
past three (3) fiscal years.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation:

Subsequent to June 30, 2016 the City became a defendant in a law suit in which the plaintiff claimed that the City
had terminated his employment in violation of the Georgia Whistleblower Act. The plaintiff is asking the Court
to award damages and attorney fees and cost of litigation. After conducting a thorough analysis of the claims
management and legal counsel concluded that the City did not violate the Whistleblower Act. Liability, if any,
which might result from these proceedings, would not, in the opinion of management and legal counsel, have a
material adverse effect on the fmancial position of the City.

Grant Contingencies:

The City has received Federal and State Grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to the disallowance of certain expenditures previously reimbursed by
those agencies. Based upon prior experience, management of the City believes such disallowances, if any, will
not be significant.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, (Continued)

Stormwater Fees:

At June 30, 2015 the City was in negotiations with a private corporation regarding the propriety of charging the
Company stormwater fees. The Company maintained that they have a federal license to maintain their own
stormwater run-off system and that the City does not participate in any activity related to the Company's system
and therefore the Company should not be charged a fee. Unpaid stormwater fees assessed to the Company for the
calendar years 2013 and 2014 amounted to $176,900 and were reported in the City's Stormwater Fund Balance
Sheet as of June 30, 2015. During fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 the Company and the City reached an
agreement to solve the issue. Amounts owed as of June 30,2015 were written offby the City and a settlement of
$110,000was recorded by the City as a stormwater receivable. The Company also agreed to contribute to the City
$25,000 a year for the next ten years which was recorded as a receivable in the City's General Fund.

14. HOTELIMOTEL LODGING TAX

The City imposes a hotel/motel tax on lodging facilities within the City. The tax was assessed at 8%. Revenues
were $2,516 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Of this amount, 62.5%, or $1,572, was remitted to the Cobb­
Marietta Coliseum and Exhibit Hall Authority as is contractually obligated. The receipts from the City, less
37.5% are pledged as a revenue source for debt service requirements ofthe Authority. Of the amount remitted to
the Authority, the City will obtain a reimbursement of 40%

The City expended $1,804, including the amount remitted to the Cobb-Marietta Coliseum and Exhibit Hall
Authority, during the current fiscal year to promote tourism as required by O.C.G.A. 48-13-51.

15. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

General accepted accounting principles require disclosures, as a part of the basic fmancial statements­
overview, of certain information concerning individual funds including -

A. Deficit fund balances or net position balances of individual funds - As of June 30, 2016, the Multiple Grant
Fund had a negative fund balance of$130,213. Management expects the deficit to be funded through future
revenues and transfers from the General Fund, if necessary.

B. Excess expenditures over budget - None of the City's funds incurred material excesses (if over 5 percent
and greater than $5,000) of expenditures over appropriations at the department level (the legal level of control)
as reported in Note 2 to these financial statements.

(See Independent Auditor's Report)

49



CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year End
2016 2015 2007

Total Pension Liabili!I
Service cost $ 167,487 $ 186,539
Interest 681,983 661,660
Differerences between expected and

actual experience 121,886 (119,799)
Changes of assumptions (254,428)
Benefit payments {222,611) {200,875)
Net changes in total pension liability 748,745 273,097
Total pension liability - beginning 8,911,083 8,637,986
Total pension liability - ending $ 9,659,828 $8,911,083

Plan Fiducia~ Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 292,687 $ 345,081
Net investment income 88,656 817,473

VI Benefit payments (222,611) (200,875)0
Administrative expense (19,975) (16,055)
Other
Net cvhange in fiduciary net position 138,757 945,624
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 8,067,085 7,121,461
Plan dicuciary net position - ending $ 8,205,842 $8,067,085

Net Pension Liabili!I
Net pension liability $ 1,453,986 $ 843,998
Plan's fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension
liability 84.95% 90.53%

Covered-employee payroll $ 3,458,027 $3,336,441
Net pension liability as a percentage

of covered payroll 42.05% 25.30%

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Historical information prior to implementation of GASB 67/68 is not required)

(Historical information prior to implementation of GASB 67/68 is not required)

(Historical information prior to implementation of GASB 67/68 is not required)



%~~'8 %£Z'8 1I0.IAlld:l:lAOldw:l
-p:ll:lAO:lJO :l'il1l1U:l:ll:ld1lS1! sU0!lnq!lluo;)

L~£'8IP'£ IPP'9££'£ ll0.IAlld :l:lAOldW:l-P:ll:lAO;)

(ssooxo) A:lU:lpY:lP UO!lnqp1UO;)
(66Z'L6Z) (1~8'8LZ) uonnqjnuoo P:lU!llil:ll:lp

AllllplmPlI ;llll 01 UOlllll:ll U! SUO!lnqp1UO;)
66Z'L6Z I~8'8LZ suonnquiuoo P:lU!UU:l1:lPAllllpunpv

LOOZ 800Z 600Z 010Z HOZ ZlOZ £lOZ tl0Z SIOZ S10Z

SlIV:1L\ 'IV:JSL!I 01 LSV'I
SNOILflHnl.I.NO:J .!IO :nflmm:JS

VI~1I03D''I'I3LSflV .!IOALI:J



CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 1

Significant methods and assumptions used in calculating the actuarially determined calculations are as
follow:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
AmortizationMethod
RemainingAmortizationPeriod
Asset ValuationMethod

Projected Unit Credit
Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded liability
N/A
Sumof actuarial value at beginning of year and the cash
flow during the year plus the assumed investment
return, adjusted by 10%of the amount that the value
exceeds or is less than the market value at end of year.
The actuarial value is adjusted, if necessary, to be
within 20% of market value.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Net InvestmentRate of Return
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of LivingAdjustments
Mortality Rates -
Healthy

7.75%
3.25% plus service based merit increases
3.25%

Disabled
Plan Termination Basis

RP-2000 CombinedHealthyMortality Table with sex­
distinct rates, set forward 2 years for males and I year
for females
RP-2000 Disabled RetireeMortality Table - unisex rates
1994Group AnnuityReservingUnisex Table

No significant factors changed that significantly affected trends in the amounts reported such as changes
in benefit terms, the size or composition of the population covered by the benefit terms, or assumptions
used.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND STATEMNTS
AND SCHEDULES



CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REYENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt services or capital projects.

Confiscated Assets Fund - To account for the City's share of excess funds received from confiscated capital and
equipment. Georgia law allows police agencies to file for seizure of property related to illegal substances or
activities. These fundsmust be used to purchase police equipment.

Emergency Telephone System Fund - Established in compliance with State Law to account for the receipt of the
"911" Emergency Telephone Systemcharges by communication firms. This revenue is used to offset the costs of
operating the "91 1" system.

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - Establishedto account for the collection of an 8% excise tax on charges for hotel/motel
accommodations in the City. This levy is required by State law to promote tourism, conventions, trade shows, and
other related purposes. 62.5% is remitted to the Cobb-MariettaColiseum and Exhibit Hall Authority as is
contractually obligated. The receipts from the City, less 37.5% are pledged as a revenue source for the debt service
requirements of the Authority. Of the amount remitted to the Authority, the City will obtain a reimbursement of
40%.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for the acquisition or constructionof capital assets.

Douglas County SPLOST Fund - To account for the acquisition and construction of major park improvements that
were approved by the voters of Douglas County, Georgia through the special purpose local option tax referendum.
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016

Sl!ecial Revenue Funds
Emergency Hotel/

Confiscated Telephone Motel
Asset System Tax
Fund Fund Fund

Assets
Cash $ 58,343 $ 66,324 $ 171
Investments
Receivables -

Taxes 442
Accounts 18,461

Due from other governments
Due from other funds 4,367
Prepaid items 25,276

Total assets 58,343 110,061 4,980

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable 1,881
Accrued liabilities 7,554
Due to other governments
Due to other funds 36,406
Due to others
Unearned revenues

Total liabilities 36,406 9,435

Fund balances
Nonspendable -

Prepaid items 25,276
Restricted -

Capital projects
Law enforcement activities 21,937
Public safety activities 75,350
Tourism and economic development 4,980

Unassigned
Total fund balances 21,937 100,626 4,980

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 58,343 $ 110,061 $ 4,980
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Emergency Hotel/

Confiscated Telephone Motel
Asset System Tax
Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:
Taxes $ $ $ 2,516
Charges for services 132,590
Fine and forfeitures 4,559
Interest income
Miscellaneous 991

Total revenues 4,559 132,590 3,507

Expenditures:
Current

Public safety 25 537,647
Public works
Culture and recreation
Tourism and economic development 1,804

Capital outlay
Administrative
Public safety 555
Culture and recreation
Tourism and economic development

Total expenditures 25 538,202 1,804

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 4,534 (405,612) 1,703

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers 190,942
Capital lease proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses) 190,942

Net change in fund balances 4,534 (214,670) 1,703

Fund balance - beginning of year 17,403 315,296 3,277

Fund balance - end of year $ 21,937 $ 100,626 $ 4,980
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
CONFISCA TED ASSETS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS), AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Budget
Original Final Acutal Variance

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures $ 28,000 $ 28,000 $ 4,559 $ (23,441)
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenues 28,000 28,000 4,559 (23,441)

Expenditures
Public safety 28,000 28,000 25 27,975

Total expenditures 28,000 28,000 25 27,975

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures 4,534 4,534

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance 4,534 4,534

Fund balance - beginning of year 17,403 17,403 17,403

Fund balance - end of year $ 17,403 $ 17,403 $ 21,937 $ 4,534
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Budget
Original Final Acutal Variance

Revenues
Charges for services $ 129,000 $ 129,000 $ 132,590 $ 3,590
Miscellaneous revenue 200 200 (200)

Total revenues 129,200 129,200 132,590 3,390

Expenditures
Public safety 635,959 635,959 538,202 97,757

Total expenditures 635,959 635,959 538,202 97,757

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (506,759) (506,759) (405,612) 101,147

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers 506,759 506,759 190,942 (315,817)

Total other financing sources (uses) 506,759 506,759 190,942 (315,817)

Net change in fund balance (214,670) (214,670)

Fund balance - beginning of year 315,296 315,296 315,296

Fund balance - end of year $ 315,296 $ 315,296 $ 100,626 $ (214,670)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
HOTELfMOTEL TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2016

Budget
Original Final Acutal Variance

Revenues
Taxes $ 3,200 $ 3,200 $ 2,516 $ (684)
Miscellaneous revenue 991 991

Total revenues 3,200 3,200 3,507 307

Expenditures
Current

Tourism and economic development 3,200 4,700 1,804 2,896
Total expenditures 3,200 4,700 1,804 2,896

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,500) 1,703 3,203

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers 4,700 (4,700)

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 4,700 (4,700)

Net change in fund balance 3,200 1,703 (1,497)

Fund balance - beginning of year 3,277 3,277 3,277

Fund balance - end of year $ 3,277 $ 6,477 $ 4,980 $ (1,497)
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
AUSTELL AREA COMMUNITY COUNCIL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Budget
Original Final Acutal Variance

Revenues
Interest income $ $ $ 110,011 $ 110,011
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenues 110,011 110,011

Expenditures
General government 130,000 130,000 130,297 (297)
Culture and recreation
Public safety

Total expenditures 130,000 130,000 130,297 (297)

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (130,000) (130,000) (20,286) 109,714

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance (130,000) (130,000) (20,286) 109,714

Fund balance - beginning of year 5,462,674 5,462,674 5,462,674

Fund balance - end of year $ 5,332,674 $ 5,332,674 $ 5,442,388 $ 109,714
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS FINANCED

WITH COBB COUNTY SPECIAL PURPOSE SALES TAX 2005
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ORIGINAL EXPENDITURES ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED BEGINNING CURRENT TO PERCENT

PROJECT COST OF YEAR YEAR DATE COMPLETE

STREETS:
Roads, streets, curbs

gutters and sidewalks $ 2,042,132 $ 1,124,157 $ 324,311 $ 1,448,468 71%

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Radio system 160,334 156,742 156,742 98%

$ 2,202,466 $ 1,280,899 $ 324,311 $ 1,605,210
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CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS FINANCED

WITH COBB COUNTY SPECIAL PURPOSE SALES TAX 2016
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ORIGINAL EXPENDITURES ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED BEGINNING CURRENT TO PERCENT

PROJECT COST OF YEAR YEAR DATE COMPLETE

STREETS:
Resurfacing s 1,113,486 s s s 0%
Roadway striping 211,032 0%
Curb and gutters 42,693 0%
Sidewalks 844,128 0%
Roadway drainage systems 193,309 0%
Sign replacement and upgrades 126,619 0%
Maintenance equipment 801,922 90,574 90,574 11%
Public works facility improvements 84,413 0%
Information technology upgrades 168,826 16,145 12,054 28,199 17%

PARKS PROJECTS:
Threadmill Complex -

Roof replacement 450,000 0%
Other improvements 300,000 0%

Parks maintenance facility improvements 200,000 124,717 124,717 62%
Upgrades to all city parks 431,345 0%
Park equipment 300,000 0%

PUBLIC SAFETY:
2 positrons 125,000 0%
3 equipped patrol vehicles 222,175 0%
Fire engine 420,000 0%
Public safety radios 250,000 17,797 17,797 7%
Public safety training facility upgrade 56,912 0%

s 6,341,860 $ 16,145 $ 245,142 s 261,287
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PROJECT

CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS FINANCED

WITH DOUGLAS COUNTY SPECIAL PURPOSE SALES TAX
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ORIGINAL EXPENDITURES ESTIMATED
PERCENT

COMPLETECOST YEAR
ESTIMATED BEGINNING CURRENT

OF YEAR

PARK PROJECTS:

Park improvements

TO
DATE

$ 522,094 $ 522,094 ,,-$_--=2::2.,4..:.:2:.:...7$ 524,521

$ 522,094 $ 522,094 ,;,,$==2..;,,4,.;,2;,,;,.7$ 524,521

62

100%



TIDS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



---------------------------------------------- - -- ----- -

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Austell's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the City's overall financial health.

Financial Trends ................................•.......••..................................................................• 63

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity .......................................................•.......•............................•..............• 70

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue
sources, property taxes and franchise fees.

Debt Capacity ...................................................•...........................•.................•..•........... 76

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current level of
outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 81

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 84

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in
the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial report for the relevant fiscal year. GASB Statement number 54 established a hierarchy of fund balance
classifications based primarily on the extent to which governments are bound by constraints placed on resources.
The effective date for implementationof GASB 54 was for periods beginning after June 15,20IO.Presentation for
fiscal years 2006-20I0 are prior to the implementationof GASB StatementNo. 54. Fiscal year 20 II was the first
fiscal year of implementation for GASB StatementNo. 54. Fiscal year 2013 was the first fiscal year of
implementationof GASB 63 and 65 and 2015 was the first fiscal year of implementation of GASB 68.



£9

Z16'9Z9'9Z $ vl£'116'9Z $ £8L'£sv'a $ zzs'oss'sz $ Z60'66L'£Z $ 06S'06£'vZ $ lZtrL9'vZ $ SO£'OL£'vZ$ S£8'000'vZ $ LL~'~£Z'ZZ $
£vL'8£L ZSS'9Lz'1 ~S£'<:96'Z vso'£6v Z9V'V£1'V 190L19'v ZLL'8Ll'll IvL SS8'01 8LO'L99'01 1O£'v09'6
v90'j7£1/L Ij7£'19S'L ££0'L9S'9 SS6'19S'L j719'06Z'L Z££'lSO'L 6LL'Sj78 Z1S'SL9 881'9(;0'1 £6v'L 18
SOI'j7,j7'SI $ 160'£LL'LI $ ,9£'j7Z9'Ll $ SSj7',6z'LI $ 910'j7L£'ZI $ L61'ZU'ZI $ OL9'9j79'ZI $ zsL',£S'ZI $ 69,'LO£'ZI $ £8L'£18'11 $

ZSI'£v£'~ $ ZI~'ZZ6'v $ 696'ZIO'S $ v89'919'j7 $ 6£z'UO'S $ Ij7z'~OI', $ rss'ssz's $ 160'llj7'~ $ L86'ZOI', $ £60'L91'~ $
(9£9'9j79'Z) (6Lv'lvz'£l (£06'vsz'£l (£~Z'vLO'j7) £68'S08 1171',179 S19'Z19 IZ,'8Z9 £09'LOZ ~L9',9Z

SV£'9LZ Sj78'~9Z
818'686'L $ 166'£91'8 $ US'L9z'8 $ L£6'069'8 $ 917£'£9(;'17 $ 001'0917'17 $ ~L6'Oj79'j7 $ OL~'ZSL'j7 $ 9£0'619'v $ OL~'~£9'j7 $

0£L'£8Z'IZ $ Z08'SS6' IZ s j7IS'Ovv'ZZ s £j7S'££L'oz s £SS'9U'81 $ 6j7£'>8Z'61 $ 8Z9'L117'6I $ vIZ'6S6'S I $ Sv8'L6S'81 $ j7Sj7'S90'LI $
6L£'~8£'£ 19£'81~'j7 S8tLIz'9 L££'L9S'j7 69~'~Zf:'£ OZ6'IL6'£ j7~I'99~'01 ozZ'aZ'OI SLv'6~j7'01 9(;9'S££'6
j790'v£v'L Iv£'l98'L ££O'L9S'9 886'19,'L j7I9'06z'L Z££'I~O'L 6LL'~j7S ZIS'SL9 Oj7S'6j7L ~j79'1~~
LSz'v9v'01 $ 001'609'6 $ £6v'9S£'6 $ 8 1~'j709'8 $ OL9'011'8 $ L60'Z9(;'S $ ~69'~00'S $ ZSI'£~O'S $ ££~'SS9'L $ ctz'sz I'L $

910Z ~IOZ -toz £lOZ ZIOZ IIOZ OIOZ 600Z SOOZ LOOZ
~Y3A lYJSI.:l

(liullun033V JO S!SU8IUD.l33V)
S.lU3AIU3S!~U31.1SIq

l.N3NOdWO:J A8 NOIl.ISOd 1.3N
VI~1I03~ 'T13l.SflV ~O Al.D

1 31fl03HJS

U0!l!SOd I;)N lU;)WU1;)AODAIIlW!ld IlllOl
P;)I:lIlIS;)lUn

P;)P!lIS;)lI
siossv IIl)!dIlJ O! iuounsoxu] IaN

luawulaAoD AIllWOld

UOII!SOd I;)N S;)!l!A!PY ;)dAl-sS;)Ulsng 11l10l
pal:llllSalUfl

pap]11sa"l:!
SI;)SSY IIll!dIlJ Ul lU;)lU1SaAUII;)N

S;)ll!AIPY ;)dAl-SS;)Ulsng

uomso.j I;)N S;)!l!A1PY IlljU;)WU1;)AODpnoj,
P;)I:l!llS;)lU()

p;):l]1lsall
Sl;)SSY 11l1!d1lJU! lU;)W1S;)AUII;)N

sa!l!Ap:lY llljU;)WU1;)AOD



fJ9

'lllaA IllOSYalqllollddllljOlla 10j suodai Ill!OUllUYpmuua ahlsuaqaldllloo S,t\JI::) .oamog

(wnn) s 86z'£OL s 9!;Z'£OI'Z s !;£fJ'I!;!;'1 s (8fJL'LI!;) s ( 1£9'on) s 916'00£ $ OLfJ'69£ s 8!;Z',9L'1 s OLI'fJLfJ'l s IuaWUlaholl AlllWlld IlllO.l

OL9'OZfJ ZfJ6'6,1 09S'01fJ (",'"fJ) 8fJL'OfJ o (Z,£'SfJJl (S6fJ'L!;Jl fJOI'80£ (90 i'fJ9) 9,8'Z6fJ'l sall!h!loll adt\J-ssaUisna
(UO',OL) $ 9!;£'£fJ, s 96£'Z69'1 s 066'900'Z s (96fJ'S,,) s o (6a'w) s fJlfJ'S!;fJ s 99£'19 s fJ9£'6ZS'1 s (9S9'S !) $ salllAllolllllluawwahoD

UO!IISOdIaN U!allulllj::)

L!;L'ZfJ6', s IfJL'"L'9 s fJO,'99S'9 s LfJI'6fJ6'!; s ,LO'£!;9'fJ s Z,£,fJ9fJ', s !;LO'£fJL'9 s L16'66,'9 s IlfJ'LS6'9 s 6£6'£6£'9 s lUawwaAoll Alllwpd IlllO.l

,6Z'lfJ6 989'199 B;0'£8£ (OL8'Lnl S£fJ'OfJI 0 Z!;9'96I Z6Z'LfJI 8S£'17S9 (6fJZ'6L) 6SS'SOL'1 Sall!h!I~" adt\J-ssau!sna
Z9fJ'I00', s "O'fJ60'9 $ £!;fJ'£SfJ'9 s L10'L1z'9 s L£9'ZI!;'fJ s 0 00L'L9z'!; s £SL'!;6!;'9 s 1>!;!;'!;16'!; s 099'990'L s 0!;£'!;S9'fJ s sall!h!loll IllluawwahoD

SlajSUlll.l pua SanUah<l'HI"lauao

(6!;I'az'9) s (£WZ,O'9) s (SfJZ'£9L'fJ> s (ZIL'L6£'fJ) $ (£ZS'OL 1',) s (£S6'fJfJL',) $ (6,I'ZfJfJ'9) s (zWO£L'9> s (m'ZZn) s (69L'6 I6'1» s osuodxa iau Iuawwaholl AlIlWlld IlllO.l

(!;W'OZ,) (fJfJL'IO,> 60S'a (,s9'LsIl (069'66) o (I>OO',fJ£) (06L'fJO£) (I>SZ'9L£) £fJl',1 (n:L'SlZ) Sa!l!h!pll adt\J-ssau!sna
(fJ£,'90L',) s (669'0,,',) s (L,O'16L'I» s (zzo'otz'e $ (££l'lLO',) s o (6L6'66£',) $ (69£'L£l'9) s (SSI'I>!;S',) $ (96Z'L£Z'!;) s (9£O'fJOL'fJ)$ Sa!l!h!IO" 1"luawwahOO

anuMa'H (asuadx3) IaN

L9z'OS!;'L $ 6Z9'96L'8 $ I!;,',SO'OI $ fJSO'6fJ£'6 $ Wl',9fJ'L $ 6,L'61£'L $ I>II'OZ!;'9 $ £6£'9S£'!; $ 16z',fJ£'!; $ 6Z£'S'SS"S' $ sanuaAal UlIlJllOJd luawwaAoll A,lIlWlld Illlo.l

Z69'I,I'!; 18z'L6L'fJ fJ£fJ'L9l', I£O'OS6'17 S££'IZZ', 0 LP9'009'fJ 1O,'"L'P IO£'60I'P v09',fJ6'£ 181'9S6'£ Salllh!Pll adt\J-ssau!sna
,L,'nv'Z $ Sv£'666'£ $ LIl'SI6'I> $ £,O'69£'v $ v9L'£vZ'Z $ 0 ZI1'6[L'Z $ £l9'v9L'1 $ Z60'La'l $ LS9'66£'1 $ SI>['66,'1 $ Sall!h!IOIl11llUaWWahOD

sanuaM'H w1l1llo1d

9z:I>'LOS'£l $ UO'61>S'vi $ 66L'SfJS'1>I $ 96L'91>L'£l $ S'Z6'S'£9'Z[$ ZI>L'v90'£1 $ £a'Z96'Z[ $ S'£S'919'1 [ $ I>VI>'L9!;'OI$ 860',OS"O[ $ sasuadxa wllJllOJd luawulahOll AlllWIJd IlllO.l

LI£'ZL9', ,W'66Z', 'Z9'6£1', 9IL'L9[', 8Z0'[Z£', 0 I>9',v6'v 16z'090', ",'!;8v'v [9!>'0£6'£ v16'1Oz'V Sa1llh!Pll adt\J-ssau!sna
601',£1'8 $ LPO'O,,'6 $ vLI'60L'6 $ 080'6L,'8 $ L68'fJl£'L $ 0 160'6[ 1'8 $ Z86'[06'L $ 08Z'I£l'L $ £86'9£9'9 $ I>SI'£O£'9 $ Sa!l!hlloll 11l1UawWahOD

sasuadx3 WllllloJd
910Z ,IOe: vlOZ £1Oe: L10e: llOZ 01Oe: 600Z 800Z LOOe:

'MV3A lV::)SH

lIulJuno33V JO S!SIIH IlIn.l33V
SlIV3A '1V::>SJ.oIN3.L .LSV'l

NOI.LISOd .L3N NI S3!lNVH::>
V101l03!l "1'13,LSIlV ,»0 A.LI::>

z: 3'11l03H::>S



~9

'S:llllAl):J1l)U:lUlW:lAOilllUaU:lilsn UlOljoiamdos Sal)lAl):)Il)U:lUldopAaponnouooa pun ursunoi sn ilUl)Jodal ull'ilaq,\)1:)a4) '8001: lllaAIll:)SlJilulJno (£)
'sairurpusdxa maunuaxof IlUauao

SllamjpM pUll41111a4ropun P:lP10:J:llAISnolAaldsainnpuodxa 'ilUlplo:Jalull'ilaqOSIIIA)l:) ;)4) '80m: 11l:lAIll:JSlJiluunO (Z)
'S:l1)lA1):JllS~lOM:JlJqndsn UlOl]orarados S:ll)lAll:Jll)U:lUlailllUllw:l)SIlMpqos sn ilUl)Jod:llull'ilaq,\)l:) all) '800Z 11l:lAIll:)SlJ'iluunO (I)

11l:lAIll:)SlJalqll:JlIddll4:Jlla10J suodar pnoumn; Illnuull :lAlSUa4aldwo:)S,'\)l:) .oomog

9Z1h08'£1 UO'6178'17I 66L'8178'17I 96(917(£1 ~Z6'~£9'(;1 Z17L'1790'£1 £Lz'Z96'n ~£8'919'1 1 171717'L9~'01 860'~0~'01 S:lSU:ldX3apIM-lllluaUlUlaAoo Ill)Ol

L 1£'U9'~ $ ~lO'66l'> $ ~Z9'6£1'~ $ 91(L9['~ $ 8lO'[Z£'~ $ [~9'~176'17 $ 16z'090'~ $ ~~~z~817z17$ [917'0£6'£ $ 1716'1Oz'v $ sal)lAl1:)vad'\.L-ssaUlSnSlll)0.L

~IL'61717 996'08£ ~Z6'~171 £LI'17£1 ~81'6171 91717'1171 860'SII ;)lSIlMPlIoS
ZSO'~~17 $ 17L6'(;I17 $ 80z'ZZ17 $ 0~6'1017 $ 9£6'06Z $ 0£~'170£ $ ~U'SL£ $ S;)l)ll1lOl;llllM UllO)S
8~17'SO~'£ $ soroarc $ 17JL'9,z'£ $ 9ZI'80£'£ $ L£I'U17'£ $ 188',(;1'£ $ 17LO'LLI'£ $ L8L'£,O'£ $ £9£'~17~'Z $ I179'Z17L'(; $ l:lM:lSPUlll:l)IlM
Z90'6,Z'1 $ OS£'17Z£'I $ SLL'17I£'1 $ L917'£Z£'1 $ OLL'8017'1 $ 176(£L£'1 $ 176£'98£'1 $ 89L'I£17'1 $ 860'~8£'1 $ £Lz'6~17'1 $ xojduroc IllwPlla14l

S:l111AIPV;)dA.L-sS;)U1Sns

60['~£1 8 $ L170'O,~'6 $ 17LI'60L'6 $ 0806LS'8 $ L6S'17I£'L $ 160'611'8 $ Z86'106'L $ OSz:'I£I'L $ £86'9£9'9 $ 1781'£0£'9 $ S;)lllA1PVIll)U:lWUlaAOOIlllOl

LII'6 ~66'171 ~~8'1(; 80L'81 1799'1 £££'L 989'9 szz'ot 617I'£Z 906'01 )q:lO UU:l.L-iluOluo )S:ll:l)UI
1708'00Z £Z~'L8 LLz'V9 968'817 19(617 017£'6L 98z'8L 6L(88 L09'8£ Z176',9[ iuaurdopxap pus ilu!SnOH
1708'1 81717'17 191'17 [Z~'17 £L9'17 888'17 060'£ 17£6'Z 86£'£ iuourdojoxop :JIWOUO:J:lpun uisuno L
IL8'L178 9(;6'17178 098'£L9 161'089 L£9'009 ~[9'68 ,Z6'£IL »17'£69 ,£9'009 Z~0'8£, uoueaioai pun :lln)ln:)

L60'£17 :llIlJI:lMpus 41111:lH
U 90L'[ 17,(9 806'66 0170'011 lU:lUl:l'illlullW:llSIlMptlOS

0[£'08£'1 ,90'UI'£ 617['9,8'£ 981'068'Z I>S'£9L'1 L17I'90S'[ ,1717'Uz'1 91z'Z96 966'1717S ,££'>6L S~lOM :JlIqnd
0170'"L'17 17(;9'86£'17 6(;£'88Z'17 L08'Z9i'V [90'L80'17 991'I117'17 017,',6Z'17 ZlO',S£'17 17Ll'ILt17 £,6'101'17 ,\):lJllS:JlIqnd

11ll:JlpnC
£91'0176 $ 9917'aO'[ $ £17,'008 $ ILL'£LL $ 8[,I'L08 $ 968'8[[,'[ $ 9,(;,,(;,'1 $ 017(;'888 $ 1786'1717[, $ 668'L179 $ luaUlulaAoo Illl:lUaO

sall1Al):JVIlllU;)WUlaAOO

910Z ,[0(; 1710(; £IOZ ztoz [ 10Z OIOZ 600Z (£)((;)([) 800(; LOO(;
}IV3A lV:)SB

(:!U!IUnOJJVJOS!SII9IlIn.lJJV)
SlIV3A 'V:)SU N3l lSV'

S3SN3dX3301M-lN3WN1I3A09
VI911039 "'USIlV 110 AlD

£3'flO3H:)S



99

°ltl::>AItl~sg ::>lqtl~!lddtlIPtl::> 10J suodai Itl!~UlluglllnulIll aAISlIa4aldll1o~S,,,"I:::>.oomog

L9Z'08!;'L 6Z9'96L'8 1!;!;'!;80'01 P80'6V£'6 W!'!;9P'L 6!;L'61 £'L PIl'OZ!;'9 £6£'98£'!; 16Z'!;P£'!; 6Z£'!;8!;'!; SanUaAa"H1l11l11101dap!M-1UaWU1aAODlll10l

Z69'1!;1'!; $ 18tL6L'P $ P£P'L91 s $ l£O'086'P $ 8£(1Z<:'5" $ LP9'009'P $ 105"'5"5"L'P$ 10£'601'P $ P09'5"P6'£ $ 181'986'£ $ Sall!AIPV adAl-SS::>U!Snalll10l

!;U'9L !;66'9(; 005"'L5" suonnqrnuo j pun SlUlllD11ll!dll:::>
suounquiuoo pua SIUlllllllun1l1ado

PSJ'ZS;£ LS;z'IO£ ZSz'S;S V68'£S IP9'£S S;1z'ZS L£8'Z8 alstlM pilOS
98P'66£ LI9'66£ 08Z'90P L8£'09£ LLS'L££ PZz'lLl 6IL'P£ 1::>11lMW101S
£Zv'Pll'£ 9£!;'V£8'Z Z8<:'8Lv'£ 85"5"'LIP'£ £8Z'6L9'£ £Z9'89(;'£ PPz'Z6S;'£ 8PZ'£66'Z 1£9'PZS'Z ZI£'906'Z l::>MaspUtllalllM
PLS'80z'I $ 9L8'PEz'1 $ 06!;'L61'1 $ Z61'811'1 $ L£S;'OZl'l $ !;8S;'8L0'1 $ 10L'S;vO'1 $ ES;0'91J'J $ EL6'OZJ'J $ 69£'ZZO'1 $ xaldwoJ ll!U1Plla14l

aO!A1as10J sall1ll4J
Sa!IIA!PVadAl-ssaUisna

!;L5"'SZP'Z $ 8P£'666'£ $ L I J'816'P $ £5"0'69£'P $ P9L'EP<:'l $ lI1'61L'l $ £I9'P9L'1 $ Z60'LLl'1 $ L89'66£'1 $ 8Pl'66!;'1 $ Sa!IIAIPVIt11uawU1aAoDlll10l
001'99fl OZ<:'P91'£ 6L6'061'P 1£0'019'£ 8S;9'8P!;'1 IL9'L9!;'1 66£'OL5" WP'£6Z £P8'9ZP LLO'Z6P suounqtnuo j pua S1Ull1DIlll!dllJ
LP6'S;9Z 60!;'01 06S; 01£ Zlz'91 U:9'8P!; 8!;Z'£6Z 8£1'18 0£8'68 PS;0'9L suounquiuo'j pun S1Ull1Dlluntl1adO
Va:'OV 19<:'9£ S;££'PI s;s;fvz P£9'L!; iuaurdojaaop pun Sutsnoj]
16v'101 Pl£'9P l68'P9 L16'0S; uoueoroar pua alnllnJ

£LL'£ 016'£ 85"L'£ 95"0'P 868'l £69'68 600'08 lllaru::>llllUllJAjalsllM P!IOS
PPI'£9 61P'61 lP6'81 £I5"'lZ lS£'P9 Wl'U sxroM ollqnd

£9i.'P!;S; P£O'ZPL !;£L'9£1 !;08'Ofl lL!;'£ZI £6v'9£l 9PO'LII l£9'££L ££9'LlL 5"61'l£8 ,,"::>JtlSO!lqnd
6!;8'5"1!; 609'965" !;L9'9Z!; L90'L£P 018'099 Ill!O!pnr

$ $ L£O'L $ 696'L $ S£6'S; $ S;L9'£ $ lZS'S;S; $ $ $ 9S6'Z9 $ luaruulaAoD IlllauaD
aO!A1as10J salll1l4:::>
sa!l!AIPV lll1uawul::>AoD

910Z S;IOZ PI0l ctoz l10Z 110Z 010Z 600Z SOOZ LOOl
"HV3AlV:::>SI.:I

(liullunO;);)V)o S!SIlU)llnJ;);)V)
UtI;)A )Il;)sl.!( U;)lISIl'1

S3flN3A311 WVll~Olld 3mA\-lN3WNlI3AO~
VI~1I03~ 'T13lSflV .'10 AlD

P 3'1flO3:H::>S



L9

'Jlla,( IIl:lSlJalqll:l!lddllq:llla JOJsuodor 11l!:lUIlUlJIIlOUUIl"A!SU"q:lldWO:ls,hjlJ ;":lJnOS

LSL'<:176'S $ I17L'SSL'9 $ 170S'998'9 $ L17I'6176'S $ SLO £,9'17 $ <:S£'17917'S $ SLO'£17L'9 $ lI6'66S'9 $ 1117'L86'9 $ 6£6 £6£ 9 $ "nU"M'MJ"410 PUlllllJ"U"D"PIM-IU"WUJ"AOD1Ill0l

,6l'1176 $ 989'199 $ 1,0'£8£ $ (OL8'L9<:) $ 8£17'Otl $ l,9'961 $ <:6tLtl $ 8,£'1789 $ (617<:'6L) $ 68,'80L'I $ S:l!l!AIPY"d'(l-ss"U1sng 11ll0l
,6tJ176 69,'199 1,0 £8£ (OL8'L9z:) £80'Otl 69,'681 ,Lzttl L61'LL9 (0<:1'98) S'WL69 I sJaJsullJl

sno:lullll:l:lS!W
$ LII $ $ $ SSE $ £80'L $ LIO'£ $ 191'L $ IL8'9 $ 179,'11 $ :lWOJU!lU:lW1S:lAUIp:ll:lIlIS:UUn

S:lllIA!l:lyad,(l-ssaUlsng

<:9t'100'S $ ,,0'1760'9 $ £,17'£8'17'9 $ LI0'U<:'9 $ L£9'<:I,'17 $ OOL L9<:, $ £8L',6,'9 $ 17SS'SI6', $ 099'990 L $ OS£'S89'17 $ Sa!I!AIPY1'1luaWUJaAOD11ll0l
(,6<:'1176) (69)'199) ( 1,0'£8£) OL8'L9<: (£80'0171) (69,'681) (,a't17J) (L61'LL9) 0<:1'98 (,<:0' L69' I) srojsuarj

£01'171 £17t911 SI"SSIlIlljldll:lJO ojas uo U!IlD
I17t£L 0£8'IS 17H'SS' 1<:6'96 ,a'£L <:,17'179<: 60£'191 0£9 8178'££ sno:mlllla:lSIW
60tOIl 1£6'911 c £,<:'t 090'<:1 90S'al 17<:8'£1<: 9<:,'170£ ssc'zsz s'ilU!UJIBiuaunsoxuj pal:l!JlsaJUO
v<:9'LOI ,99'£01 IlljUaUlwaAo'ilJalul
0617'01 9£,'1 <:8£.'81 IL8'£1 1<:£'<: 91717'91 0LL'£ a6'11 6£17'£ 9<:6'9 jSaJalUjpue Sa!llllu:ld
,£6'9,9 9£,'18, 617£'<:SS 0<:8'17171 L,t'L£I 1£9'£<:, 8,V'£v> 0£9'S'SS' £9<:'£17, LI17'O£, Ja410
I<:6'L6<:'17 £0<:'89<:', 0<:9'86,', £SL'<:W', <:£,'OSL'£ 99<:'ZOO'17 6£1'££0', 17£6'00£.'17 6,1'968'17 9£17'£<:17'17 saaJ d!ljSJaUMOpua saXlllaSllj:lUllJd
ZOO'V, 000'17, 6£9'179 £10'61 8S£'S'S £U'617 ozz'sv ,11'0017 tv8'vv> L£v'9817 asO pun salllS
,££'<:£9 $ £(;6'L17, $ 08£'9L, $ 9££.'1,9 $ 16£',8S $ 169'88S $ £90'90L $ 169'60L $ 60£'889 $ £S'6'819 $ hJJadoJd

soxaj
Sall!A!PY IlllUaWUJaAOD

910<: SIO(; 1710<: £10(; <:10(; 110(; 010<: 600(; 800(; LOO(;
lIY3A '1YJSH

(lIU!IUnOJJYJOS!SIIHIlInnJY)
SlIl;)A IIIJs!!I uallslI'l

S3flN3A311113HlO ONY 'lVll3N39
YI911039 ''l'l3.ISflY .'10 A.IJ:)

S3'lflO3H:JS



89

17, 'oN 9SVO Aq P:lPIAOld SUOIIIl~mSSIlp :l1.(1'ilUisn S:lllo'il:llIl:ll:lpUn pauodar SI :l~UIlIIlq punJ 'II OllIl:lA 11l~sy 10J 'iluIUUI'il:l8 ::llON

'le:lA le~sy :llqll~!ldde1.(~e:lloJ uodsr lepulluy pmuun :lAISU:llPldUlO~ S.Al1;) .oornog

L90'1717£'L$ l17l'lLL'L $ £OS'109'L $ v,v'£8S'L $ 8Il'Svl'L $ vL l'OS6'9 $
(£ll'O£l) (£96'1£1) (090'£9) (Sstvll)

8S£'lWS vL9'l9v'S 00S'S89
086'17 urs: l£O'17 vL8'v 196'S L£6'9
O,£'5;L l£v'£a 61L'801 101'l£ 017Z'£S I96'Z6Z
L£6'IZ £Ov'Ll 0IS'9£ ZI1'8 ,6,'L ZI£'9
6017'688'1 SSS'vOI'l ZLL'SvO'£ 006'S8£'£ LI8'£ZtL ZZI'SvL'9

000'ZL9'£ OOO'l£l'v
91tOv $ 1798'117 $ oa'Lv $ 99v'll $ v99'Ol $ L60'£1 $

oes'cor- $ £60'0IS'S $ 088'Slv'S $ 600\S£'v $ llv'vO£'£ $ 619'n:0'v $

LltL68'£ £lO'9Sl'S L9v'LSO'S SS£'£91'17 £9L'OLJ'£ S88'906\:
lO£'Z£

L81's
£09'90l $ 080'vS£ s £117'89£ s 17,9'161 $ 6179'££1 $ Svt68 $

SPUIl.:!IIllU:lWU1:lAOO1:lLJ10 IIV lelol.
P:lu'il!SSIlUn

p:lll'ilISSV
siuauraouaqua AlmnulUlO;)

UOilOWOld pun ursunoj,
S:lllIA!l~e A!:lJIlS ~!lqlld

S:l!llAII~IllU:lW:l~lOJU:l Mel
SP:lfOld 11l1lduJ

P:lPlllS:l}J
spunj 1:l1.(1001 S:l~UIlAPV

suron pmd:lld
:JoJ ::>lqupu:ldSUON

spunj jelU:lWUJ:lAOO 1:l1.(10IIV
pUIl.:!IIlJ:lU:lO 11l10l.

P:lu'il!SseUn
P:lu'il!SSV

P:lllIUIWOJ
Al01U:lAUI

suion SPllld:lld
::llqupuadsuON

punj j1l1aU:lO

Sv6'££L'9 $ 16Z'ISS'9 $ 1789'699'9$ 8£0'9(;t9 $

OLS'8lS'9 811'JEL'S 90v'aL's 90l'S£9'S
ZL17'061 $ 6vtLOI $ v81'Z81 $ SZS'S£ $

£06'171 $ 17l6'lIL $ v60'09L $ LO£'SS> s
170S'919'17 $ £98'1££'17 $ l£O'vL£'V $ 96L'86S'£ $

09>'£8£'17 L8S'L96'£ £8L'LIJ'v 6lv'LS£'£
17176'l£l $ 9Ll'179£ $ 6vt9Sl $ L9£'lvl $

910l SIOl vIOl £IOl ZIOZ uoz OIOZ 600Z 800Z LOOZ
'MV3A lVJSH

spunJ 11l1U:lWUlaAo'ill:l1.(101I1l11l10l.

spunJ sioorord 11l1ldllJ
spun] :lIlU:lAalllll~ads

p:lAlas:llUn
p:lAlas:l}J

spun:! 11l1U:lWUlaAOO1:l1.(10IIV
pUll:! IIlJ:lU:lO IlllOl.

P:lAl:lS:lJlIO
P:lAl:lS:l'M
punj jIl1:lU:lD

(liununOJJV JO S!S8H 18n.lJJV pa!J!pow)
SoI8aA18JS!.:IU;J.LJS8'1

S<INfl.:l '1V.LN3WNlI3AO~ .:10S33NV1VH ONfl.:l
VI~1I03~ ''l'l3.LSflV .:10A.LIJ

931fl03H3S



69

·JWA l1r.ls!J alquJ1(dduljJua JOj suodai 11lI:>uuu!JIunuuu aA!SUallaJdwoJ s,AlIJ :a:lJnos

%88"Z %,1"£ %68"<: %UT %00·8Z %6,·1 %I>O·Z %WT %99·Z %6Z·1> samnpuodxa IU1!dllJUOU
01samnpuedxo <I:>!AJ<lSlQao

(81)1>'££8'J) $ Z,9'Z,Z $ ,t9',LO'1 $ ££8',8£'1 $ (£91'1£1» $ (9,9'99£) $ ,6tL91> $ (£9,'091) $ £88'8Itl $ 01>£'88,' I $ <I:>ulllllgpun.:!U!aaulllIJ IaN

(U8',I£) (916'£Ltl ( 1,0'£8£) WI>'18L LI6'£01> (69,'6£1) 0£81>LI (L61'LL9) OZI'1>8£ (L9£'ZI>I>'I) (s<lsn) soomog aUlJullul.:!J:}1I10IlllO.l
(1I>L'Z88) bl>'(68) (I>S8'1>66) (090'£1>6) (,6,'118) (LI>,'n:tI) (Z,8'681'1) (L61'LL9) (9(;0'L69'I) mo JajsullJ.l
Z1>6'061 9Z,'61> £08'119 0£6'0Itl ZI>'IL9 8L6'£1>0'1 LL,',I>O'I OZI'98 ut JajSUllJ.l
680'U £8n I 000'0, ,01'6,Z ,ZZ'ZI siassa Illlldll:>]0 <llllSWOJ.Ispaa:>oJd
888'£0£ Z£,'£IS Llt6Z, 000'09 000'86Z I>£I>'ZI>Z iqap uuoi-Suo] WOJ]spaa:>OJd

(sasfl) sa;unos lIupuBUl.ol .IaqlO
(9(;9'LI>'I) 89,9(;9 969'8,f! 1£1>'1>09 (080',£8) (L80'aZ) ,91>'Z6Z 1>£9'91> £9L'1>£8 LOL'O£O'£ ;amllPuadx3 JaAOanu<lM"M]o(ll:>!Jao) ssooxq
LI>I>'99,'6 81L'891'01 I>L9'1>1>'01 8Z£'68,'6 L61'989'L 81>1'£01>'8 £,8'8,0'8 ,L6 £,Z'L 908',ZI> L a8'9LtL samnpuodxg IlllO.l
618'9£0 Z 91>9'U8 69L'1>18 ,£I'L£t I Z1>6'1 UI'09 Ul>',I>Z I>Z908, 606'9,1'1 ,Z6'£,I'1 ABJlnO IBl!dBJ
008'9 ,66'1>1 SS8'IZ 80L'81 1>99'1 £££'L 069'11 OZ£'OZ L,I>'£I 1>10'11 IS<lJ<lIUI
816'ZIZ Z,I>'I>I£ 616',9Z 996'08Z 686'61 ,£I'£ZI 60£'1>1>1 O,,',LI m'61> I 9£8'8£Z Illdl:>uPd

a3!A.l3SlqaO
LLI>'I>I>£ 11>0'1>Z1 LL(.'1>9 968'81> 19L'61> 01>£'6L 98t8L LL6'£6 900'ZI> 890'LOI iuouidojoxap pun aUlsnoH
,£L'189 1>9tl>69 ,W'LI9 ZI6'L" 60£'£1>8 1,1'099 £U'9L9 £,8'£8, ,OL'W; 1>1>£',91> uouearoor pue aJmln::>
I>OS'I sl>I>'l> 19J'1> IZ,'I> £L9'1> 888'1> 060'£ 1>£6'Z 1>1>0', iuaurdopxop ounouooa pua uisunoj,

L60'£1> <lJll][<IMpus 1I1111<lH
U 90L'1 1>,L'9 I>L9'ZOI 01>0'011 wawaauuuUl alSUMP1(oS

1>81'1>,8 Ll>t6,6'Z 6S£'61>9'£ OL,'IU'Z £>I'81O'Z 906'ZI8'1 61>8'£I>Z'1 061>'16L ££ 1'£1L llW'l>llL Sl[JOMJ!lqnd
EL,'£OZ 60L'S61 00L'9L I IZI>'9LI 6,1>'991 ,9tI>LI ,1>9'L£1 01lL'61>1 801'1>1 £9L'O>l IUlolpnr
611tUn 9ZtLtO'I> 1>06'I>L6'£ LOZ'£Z8'£ 1>00'L6L'£ LZ I '9,0'1> 6L6'6116'£ 609'9,6'£ L6L'16S'£ S09'I>U'£ Al~JuS:>llqnd
S1>8'1>8 069'8£6 ,OL'Z98 Z66'61L ILI'£8L ,ZI'£ZI>'I 9,,'IZ,'1 1>9J'96L 981>'699 1>1>1'86, luaUlwaAoD IllJauaD

sa.lnl!Poadx3
IZ8'81>0'8 98t,6L'01 OLE016'11 6,L'£61'01 LII 1,8'9 I90'9LJ '8 81£'[,£'8 6090LL'L 69,'09(;'8 I>£,'LO£'OI spun.:!llllUaWWaAoDIlV IUI0.l
I>LL'901 66Z'6Z1 I>EL" IZ696 siru. Z,I>'I>9(; 60£'[91 L£9'89 Z1L6, £,8',8 snoauulla:>slW
L£I'I>I I,S'1>61 06, 01£ 9L, 810'Z 1>09 0" OLO'I 091>'£ SUO!IUUOPpua suounquiuo.j

LZ6'11 9£1>'£ rsaronn pun sa!lluuad
6,Z'011 1£L'911 a,'Z£1 ,89'811 ,I>tl, 8,£'96 9,0'6Z1 1>1O'91Z ,Z,'I>O£ 616'Z8Z saulw1l3 iuounsaxuj
ZLL'811>'! ,911',90'£ ZSv'll,O'1> IIS'09£'£ ZI£'LI,'I Z£t9Z0'Z £08'198 ,ZO'I>I>Z ZI>0'8£1> ZZ6'89, IllluawUJaAOal<lluI
90tOSJ W,'SI> I ISll'ZI>I OZ,'L£l 6,9'6ZI £6£'ZI>I 1>£6'£LI SS,'"Z S6,',ZZ I>LL'LOZ sa:>lAJ<lSJOJSaaJllq::>
S,,'I>OI> Z£,'£6, 6SS'SJ, 609'96, ,L9'9ZS L90'L£1> 01S'099 ZIZ'L9, O,z'EL, 00L'91L saJnl!:l]JoJ pua saul.:!
I>LtOI> 19z'9£ SOS'L9 £S,'I>Z O,,'ZZ I>I>£'£Z ztz'ss ,££'1>1 "I>'I>Z ,1>0',1>1> sllwJad pua sosuoorj
11>8'££9', $ ,l>tOI>'9 $ 61,'9£6'9 $ OZ£'S,S', $ ,ZS'6Z,'1> $ L61'I>SI', $ 06,'L6t9 $ IZ£'Z6£'9 $ 181>'0£9'9 $ 198'966'L $ saXll.l

:sanoOlAOll:l
910Z ,IOZ I>IOZ £IOZ Z10Z uoz OIOZ 600Z 800Z LOOZ

"MV3AlV::>SI.:I

(liulluno33V JOS!SIlBlun.l33V POllJIPoW)
SHV3A 'lV:JSI.oI N3l.l.SV'l

SONfl.ol 'lVl.NJWNl:IJA09.o10 S3:JNV'lV8 ONfl.olNI SJ!>NVH:J
VmHOJ!> "l'lJl.SflV .010Al.I::>

L J'lflO3H:JS



OL

·W:))SASSIlO IllJn)IlN lI:))Sny :lq) Aq pmd st qOllJM%6 0) %8
WOl] :lSll;)l:JU!;))lll Xll):)S!lJ:JUlll,J0) ;)np vlOZ 0) £I0Z WOl] osaiou] ·W:))SASSilO Illl"lIlN IP)sny WOl] p:lAl;):J:llS:l;)]dllJSJ:lUMOsapnpuj (Z)

-spunj s):J;)rOld Ill)ldll:::>pun 'spun", ;)nu:lA:l}:J11ll:JOOS'pun", IBl;)U;)O (I)
·lll::l,(IllOS!.)::Ilqll:J!lddlltpll::l JOJ suodor Ill!OUllU!.)IllnUUll::IA1SU::IlJ::IldwooSIll;) :::I01nOS

IZ8'8vO'8 vLL'901 L£I'vl 6StOIl 8SS'VOV 90Z'OSI UL'88S'1 va'ov Iv8'££9'S 910Z

98ts6L'01 66t6Z1 IS8'v61 I£L'911 Z£S'£6S ZOS'8vl S98'S90'£ In'9£ SvtOIS'9 SIOZ

OL£'016'11 v£L'ss 06S LZS'Z£I 6S8'SIS 188'Zvl ZSV'8S0'v 808'L9 6IS'9£6'9 vtoz
6SL'£61'01 IZ6'96 01£ S89'811 609'96S OZS'L£I 118'09£'£ £8S'VZ OZ£'8S8'S f10Z

Ll ['[SS'9 Sa'£L 9LS SvtlS SL9'nS 6S9'6Zl ZI£'LIS'I OSS'ZZ SZ8'6ZS'v ZIOZ

I90'9LI'S ZSV'v9Z SIO'Z SS£'96 L90'L£v £6£'Zvl ztz'szo'z VV£'£Z L61'vSI'S 1l0Z

SI£'ISE'S 60£'I91 1709 9S0'6Zl 01S'099 v£6'£LI £OS'19S Zlt99 06S'L6t9 OIOZ

609'OLL'L L£9'89 OSS vto'stz ZItL9S 8SS'SSZ SZO'VVZ S££'vl Svtvov'9 600Z

69S'On'S ZIL'6S OLO'I SZS'vOf OStfLS 86S'5ZZ ZVO'S£V ssfVz LI6'££9'9 800Z

v£S'LO£'OI £SS'58 0917'£ 616'ZSZ 00L'91L vLL'LOZ ZZ6'89S £00'85 £06'£S£'S LOOZ

IB)OL sDOaUllllaJs!w JJBAPd 3WOJUI S3JDl!3JJO;l 3J!AJ3S 1")U3WUJaAOD sl!WJ3d (Z) S3XBL '0£ 3unr papu3
WOJj sU0!lBUOO JS3JJ)UI pUB JOj -JaIU! pUB JBJA IBJS!;I

pUBsU0!lnqpJuo:) S3U!iI S3l'iJBq:) S3SU3J!'1

S!SB8IBDJJJY pa!J!pow
SlIY3A 'lY:::>SIiIN3L LSV'l

(I) 3:)lIflOS ,\8 S3flN3A311 'lVLN3WN1I3AOD 'lY1I3N3D
VIDlI03D "rta.tsnv .!IO ALI:)

83'lflO3H:)S



·onjllAlO'llllW l!IlJ SllJO %017l11pOSSOSSllS! 41odold ::llON

lOSSOSSyXll].AlUnO;) qqO;) .oomog

90"£ £!;9'066'6171 817tZ89'Z 066'17170'9 600'170Z 0£0'££17'171 £OI'8!;!;'Z17 69L'(;£17'68 910Z/!;IOZ

90·£ !;LI'Z!;9'9171 088'LLt£ 0!;1'£!;0'8 17017'!;OZ 900'££!;'171 909'90L'Z17 688'1 £17'178 !;IOZl1710Z

00·17 9LO'817!;'!;!;j 90tL617'£ 089'1£1'11 171O'80Z !;L17'L61'17£ 1718'89L'I17 66z'6£L'IL 17IOZ/£1OZ

00·17 £16'17LO'!;!;1 LI9'LL17'Z OZI'866'ZJ 88z'£1Z Z9!;'9L9'££ £178'170z'£17 LIL'6!;17'L9 c IOZ/ZlOZ

00·17 LI17'1£z'!;!;j 8£L'Z6L'Z 069'6 IL'I j 181'IZZ 81 I'!;9£'££ 9££'669'£17 0£8'810'69 Zlom 10Z

zrt 117!;'!;!;5;'5;LI ILz'1709'£ 08!;'6L17'I I 91z'1 £Z 5;L5;'17917'L£ 17££'Z66'05; LOI'Z66'8L IIOZ/OIOZ

zrt IZ8'986'061 66tUI'17 o£O'£OI'ZI 9£O'95;Z 6L9'00!;'17£ ZZI'5;U'5;5; £5;z'17L!;'Z6 010Z/600Z

zrt LOI'Zlz'!;IZ 8Lz'1717I '5; O£1'0££'171 Z90'88Z 1!;I'5;17t61 998'£LL'175; 9L 1'61L'1 £1 600Zl1100Z

zrt I Iz'L8£'£OZ 1710'8v8'v 08L'vI!;'£1 OvO'II£ £8v'vv£'91 8L£'ZO!'t5; vv!;'Z96'£ZI 800Z/LOOZ

Z1"£ 696'85;6'v81 £v8'6117'£ 0!;9'8LL'11 17!;z'5;6Z v!;z'96z'91 IllI'!;v£'Z!; £Lv'£99'LOI LOOZ/900Z

al8H anl8A AlJadoJd AlJ;JdOJd awoH AlJadoJd AlJadoJd AlJadoJd JBaA j8JS!.!I/J8aA XII].
X8.1 passassv ldw;JX:!I-X8.1 ap!qaA al!qoJ\] III!JlSnpnI 18pJawwo;) IlIlluap!saH

paJIO alq8xII.1 :ssa'l JOWW
18lO.1 18lO.1

SHV:!IA 'lV;)SI1I N:!I.1.1SV'l
A.1H:!IdOHd :!I'lIIVXV.1 'l'lV - :!Ifl'lVA 'lVfl.1;)V O:!l.1VWI.LS:!I ONV amvx O:!lSS:!ISSV

VIDHO:!lD ''l'l:!l.1SflV 110 A.LI;)
6 :!I'lfl O:!lH;)S



°1I<l1snyJO Al!;) <lIpll!q1!M SJ<lUMOAlJ<ldoJd
01 A:lddtl1tlq1SlU<lUIW<lAO~AlunO:l pun Itl:lolJo osoqi <1mS<l1tlJ~ll!ddtlp<lAO .rossassv Xlll Aluno;) qqO;) :<I:lJn0S

9v06l ~000 06°g1 ~voL 90°£ 910Z/~IOZ

IL"6l 01°0 06°g1 ~9°L 90°£ ~IOl/vIOl

96°££ ~IOO 06°g1 16°01 00°17 vlOl/£I0l

96°££ ~I"O 06°g1 16°01 00°17 ctozzroz
IZov£ ozo 06°g1 uu 00°17 ZIOZ/I 10Z

ss'zs ~ZOO 06°g1 19°01 ZIO£ II0liOIOZ

LgoI£ ~ZOO 06°gI 09°6 ZIO£ OIOll600Z

Lgol£ ~ZOO 06°g1 09°6 ZIO£ 600Z/g00Z

zsts ~ZOO 06°g1 09°6 ZI"£ gOOZ/LOOZ

Lgol£ szo 06°g1 09°6 no£ LOOZ/900Z

LgoZ£ szo 00°61 0~001 zrc 900Z/~00Z

IR1O.1 alR1S uOHu;mp3: JO p.lt!og A1UnO;) A1D .IRaA IR;)s!.!:I/0lt!aA Xtl.1
(r) ,{:Juno;) qqO;)

(<lnltlApassossn JO 000' I $ rod a1tl"}l)
SlIV3:A lIV([N3:'1V;) N3:.1.1SV'1

S.1N3:WNlI3:AOO ONIddV'1lI3:AO '1'1V - S3:.1VlI XV.1 A.1lI3:dOlid
VIOlI03:0 ''1'13:.1SIlV .tIO AU;)

or 3:'1Il([3:H;)S



£L

JOSS:JSSYxu.LAlunoJ qqoJ .oomog

%~Z 6LS'6£L'S£ $ %~Z 8£6'~17z'~£ $ [BlO.L
%L."O 01 817z'L80'1 A.u:JfW UIU!lI!A'\.rnilufl
%L."O 6 L£I'680'1 'OJ pUln W raqumq J:JlU,\\l:J:JMS
%L."O S L6£'ZZI'1 J'l'lllP:JJJ WHI
%6'0 L ZP£'Z££'1 sepisrupuj .rnlsnu.rnJ
%£'1 9 £89'166'1 'oJ J:JModu!ilJo:JO
%17'1 s £80'L60'Z :JdOPAU3:luUO!lUN
%~'£ P 8L£'66£'~ AundwoJ J:JdUdJ:JlU,\\l:J:JMS
%9'£ c PZ£'Pl~'~ suopaorunumrooejej, qlnoslPS:
%Z'9 Z 689'OO~'6 p.rnoqxos: lI:Jlsny
%£'9 86~'~09'6 w:Jqlnos )JIOjJON

%P'O 01 OZL'~~~ J'l'l s:J!lJ:JdoJd:Jlilu3::JlU!Od
%P'O 6 LL1'£L~ lunld :Jqn.LlI:Jlsny - OdJI
%17'0 8 LZ£'IZ9 O'Tl SAolIY:JAJ:Js:J"'8:
%~'O L OS9'ZL9 :lUI:Jilpo'l A:lu:J!:llli3:
%~'O 9 Z61'£~L o'rr P"'8:s:JpqdwnH 686Z
%L'O s 916'Z90'1 :lUI:Jqn.LJ:JdUd.IlllS
%P'I P 660'ZS6'1 :lUIpun'l W J:Jqwn'll:JlU,\\l:J:JMS
%Z'~ £ £1£'9££'L 'oJ pmoq J:JdUdl:JlU,\\lOOMS
%O'L Z 16P'L~S'6 ilioJ p.rnos: xos: lI:Jlsny
%£'S £ZO'1£8'11 w:Jqlnos )JIOjJON

3nlBA ~UBlI 3nlBA 3"IBA ~uBlI 3"IBA .l3ABdxB~
P3SS3SSY P3SS3SSY P3SS3SSY P3SS3SSY
3IqBXB~ 31qBxB~ 31qBxB~ 3IqBXB~

AllJ IBlO~jO All:) IBlO~JO
38BlU3J.l3d 38BlU3J.l3d

900l: SIOl:

O~V SlIV3A 3NIN <INVlIV3A lIV<IN3'1VJ ~N:rnlIflJ
S1I3AVdXV~ A~1I3dOlld '1VdlJNllid

Vml103~ ''1'1llS11V1I0ALIJ
113'1!l<I3HJS



vL

;}:)!IJOSl;}UO!SS!WWO;)X1l~AlunO;) qqO;) .oomog

%1;'£6 ££~'88£ %v·£6 ££~'88£ ~~8'!;Iv 9IOZ

%V"S6 6£I'!;!;£ Z££'L %V"£6 L08'Lv£ 69Z'U£ !;IOZ

%9·66 vII'£Lv 6V9'ZZ %8·v6 ~9V'O!;V 6£6'vLv vIOZ

%0·S6 OOZ'99V 8SV'£Z %Z·06 ZVL'ZVV v8L'06v £IOZ

%V"66 8I8'££v L68'6 %I"L6 IZ6'£Zv Lv~'9£v ZIOZ

%0·66 SZ8'V817 Z68'S %8·L6 ££6'8Lv 918'6817 IIOZ

%0·0 %0·0 OS6'S09 OIOZ

%0·0 %0·0 8I8'86~ 600Z

%0·0 %0·0 9SL'LSS 800Z

%0·0 %0·0 6S£'££S LOOZ
L;}'1 runourv S.lII;}A P;}P;}1I0;) SUO!P;}1I0;) AA;}'1 '0£ 3Nflf U3UN3JOJU;}J.I;}d ruonbasqng U! M;}'1JO XII.! JU;}.I.10;) XII.! IlIto.! lIV3A '1V;)SIil

;}JIIUOl SUO!P;}1I0;)IlIlO.! SUOllJ;}1I0;) lU;}J.I;}d

SlIVU '1V::>SIil N3.! .!SV'1
SNOU::>3'1'10::> UNY S3IA3'1 XV.! A.!1I3dOlld

VI~1I03~ 'T13.!SaV .'10 AU::>
ZJ 3'1aU3H::>S



SCHEDULE 13
CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FRANCHISE TAX AND OWNERSHIP FEES PERCENTAGES
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR AND FIVE YEARS AGO

Current Year
Franchise Tax & Percentage of 2016 2011
Ownership Fees Gross Sales Revenue Revenue

Austell Gas System (ownership) 9% $ 3,597,272 $ 3,345,674

Georgia Power 5% 521,380 510,049

Greystone Power 5% 72,374 44,819

Comcast Cable TV 5% 51,568 42,415

AT&T 3% 39,528 59,309

Total $ 4,282,122 $ 4,002,266

Source: City's fmance department
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SCHEDULE 15
CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Debt
Outstanding

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable (1)

Estimated
Share of

Overlapping
Debt

Direct General Obligation Debt:

Overlapping General Obligation Debt:

Cobb County General Obligation Debt
Total, General Obligation Debt

$ 10,514,647 1% $ 105,146
105,146

Overlapping Guaranteed Revenue Debt:

Cobb County Parking Deck Certificates
Cobb County Revenue Anticipation Certificates
Cobb-Marietta Coliseum and Exhibit Hall Authority
Cobb County Solid Waste Management Authority

Total, overlapping revenue debt

City Direct Debt:
Capital Lease

8,850,000 1% 88,500
6,142,637 1% 61,426

40,055,000 1% 400,550
1%

$ 65,562,284 1% $ 655,623

$ 293,187
$ 293,187

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Cobb
County Finance Department. Debt outstanding data provided by Cobb County Finance Department
and Cobb County School District.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries
of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments
that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Austell, Georgia. This process recognizes
that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden
borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every
taxpayer is a resident and, therefore, responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion ofthe county's taxable assesses
value that is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the Cobb County's total taxable assesses
value.
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SCHEDULE 17
CITY OF AUSTELL, GEORGIA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE-WATER & SEWER FUND
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Utility Less: Net
FISCAL YEAR Service Operating Available Debt Service

ENDED JUNE 30, Charges Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

2007 2,906,312 2,539,265 367,047 175,000 24,975 1.84

2008 2,824,631 2,322,800 501,831 185,000 17,100 2.48

2009 2,993,248 2,847,700 145,548 195,000 8,775 0.71

2010 3,591,952 3,106,552 485,400

2011 3,268,623 3,059,004 209,619

2012 3,679,283 3,405,721 273,562

2013 3,415,860 3,245,302 170,558

2014 3,478,282 3,256,714 221,568

2015 3,732,283 3,974,645 (242,362)

2016 4,341,158 4,413,255 (72,097)

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fmancial statements.
Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.
All revenue bonds matured February, 2009; therefore, no bond payments were paid subsequent to Fiscal Year 2009.
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